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Reliability & Resilience



Reliability &  
Resilience 
Throughout the years Central Industries has earned acclaim as a leading manufacturer and 
marketer of high quality pipes and fittings under the respected “National PVC” brand and 
the equally respected ‘Krypton’ brand of electrical switches and sockets. 

The period under review is witness to the Company’s uncompromising dedication to 
provide our customers with an array of products of superior quality in each of the industries 
we operate in, from residential plumbing and electrical installations to complex commercial 
and infrastructure related projects.

In keeping with our core values, we have over the years, with reliability and resilience 
progressed steadily towards our goal of being the most sought after choice of the 
discerning customers steadly in our sphere of industry, towards our goal of being the most 
sought after supplier for the discreming customers.
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It is with pleasure I present to you on behalf of the Board 
of Directors, the Annual Report and Audited Financial 
Statements of Central Industries PLC for the Year ended 
31st March 2017

Performance during the Year

During the first half of the year the Company continued 
to build upon the steady progress we had achieved 
over the previous years. However, as mentioned in my 
report last year on the prospects for 2016/17 we foresaw 
areas of concern which materialised during the second 
half of the year resulting in immense pressure on prices 
and margins. Specifically these were, PVC raw material 
prices which rallied at a higher than expected rate, the 
average exchange rate during the year which depreciated 
by almost 6% compared to the previous year, and a 
higher rate of inflation and interest rates compared to 
the previous year. Low demand for PVC pipes from the 
National Water Supply and Drainage Board also resulted 
in oversupply in the other segments. Uncertainty around 
the implementation of the higher VAT rate was another 
factor which caused uncertainty in the industry. An added 
burden was imposed upon the PVC industry at the last 
budget in November 2016 when a customs duty was 
imposed on PVC and all plastic raw material imports 
which reversed previous government policy of exempting 
raw materials from customs duty. Thankfully, this duty 
was withdrawn in February 2017 after the Company and 
other industry players made several representations to the 
Finance Ministry.

A new SLS standard for potable water pipes came in to 
effect in January 2016. However, with the rapid increase in 
costs there was an unhealthy development in the market 
where demand for low-cost products which do not meet 
the new SLS standard, increased.

The combination of these factors arising almost 
simultaneously within a short span created a situation 
where the industry and Company were unable to pass on 
the higher costs to the market. As a result, the profitability 
of the Company was well below expectations during 
second half of the year.

Despite these challenges, the electrical products unit 
of the Company which markets the 'Krypton' brand of 
domestic electrical switches achieved revenue of Rs.349.9 

million, a 10% growth over the previous year while total 
revenue increased moderately to Rs.2.35 billion compared 
to Rs.2.23 billion achieved during the previous year.

The Company recorded a consolidated profit before 
tax of Rs.201.32 million compared to Rs.252.89 million 
in the previous year, while profit after tax decreased to 
Rs.139.03 million compared to Rs.180.23 million in the 
previous year.

Dividends

The Board is pleased to recommend a first and final 
dividend of Rs.2.75 per share out of profits for the year 
ended 31st March 2017. The ordinary shares of the 
Company were subdivided at the ratio of two shares for 
every one share held by shareholders on 28 July 2016. 
Last year a dividend of Rs.5.50 per share was paid on 
the ordinary shares in issue prior to the sub-division. 
The dividend will be paid out of the taxable profits of the 
Company which will be subject to withholding tax. Our 
Auditors, KPMG, have confirmed that this distribution 
satisfies the solvency test requirement of the Companies’ 
Act No.7 of 2007 and a certificate to this effect has been 
obtained. The dividend will be paid within seven market 
days of the AGM after approval by the shareholders.

Product Portfolio

During the year the Company invested in the complete 
range of injection moulds required to manufacture PVC 
fittings to comply with the new SLS standard, SLS 659-
2015. With this investment the Company hopes to be 
amongst the first few manufacturers to introduce the new 
SLS standard fittings into the market. The new investment 
will also help to achieve lower reject rates and improve 
productivity in this area.

During the year the Company also introduced rectangular 
snap-on electrical conduit casings of a new and improved 
design. This product is now marketed in both the 
hardware and electrical dealer markets, where, due to its 
convenience of use, has been well accepted.

The Company’s product portfolio includes the core 
range of PVC potable water pipes and fittings, and also 
includes PVC ball valves, PVC solvent cement, rigid and 
flexible electrical conduits, flexible PVC garden hoses, 
rain gutters, pipes and fittings for rainwater and soil-
waste management, manufactured and marketed under 

Chairman’s Review
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the Company’s flagship brand 
‘NATIONAL PVC’. PE water tanks 
and septic tanks are manufactured 
and marketed under the brand 
name ‘NATIONAL PE’ and stainless 
steel water tanks under the brand 
name ‘NATIONAL SS’. A range of 
rigid electrical conduits are also 
manufactured and marketed under 
the brand name ‘CILTEC’ while 
a range of taps and bathroom 
accessories are marketed under the 
'AQUATEC' brand name.

The product portfolio also includes 
electrical switches and sockets, 
light dimmers, fan controllers, bell 
pushes and switch mounting boxes 
for domestic use manufactured and 
marketed under the ‘KRYPTON’ 
brand name. The Company also 
markets MCBs, RCCBs, and a range 
of accessories including digital timers 
and MCB type electric door-bells 
for domestic use under the same 
brand name. During this year we 
also introduced a range of electrical 
products from a reputed international 
brand 'Onesto' for specialised 
applications.

At the turn of 2016/17 the 
Company also introduced a novel 
and revolutionary wood substitute 
product specifically engineered for 
use as valance boards. This product 
is marketed under the brand name 
'GREENWOOD' and has gained 
good acceptance amongst a wide 
spectrum of professionals and 
home-builders as a reliable, easy to 
use, long-lasting product which adds 
an elegant finish to roof eaves of 
houses.

Human Resources

The Company continuously reviews 
the skills and capabilities required 
from our employees and invests in 
training and knowledge development 
required to enable all employees to 
perform their functions efficiently and 
effectively.

During this year too, a broad cross-
section of employees were trained 
both in-house and at reputed training 
institutions.

An active Employee Welfare Society 
also organized several social events, 
which brought together all staff and 
their families and helped to promote 
amity and team-work. The Company 
also maintains health and safety 
related insurance schemes to cover 
employees on health and safety 
risks. Occupational health and safety 
measures are always in place and 
the Company has systems to ensure 
that employees are trained and follow 
industry standard practices in the 
workplace.

The Company also continuously 
reviews remuneration and incentive 
schemes and adapts these where 
necessary to attract and retain 
qualified and experienced employees.

Through all these measures a cordial 
and healthy relationship prevailed 
amongst the employees and the 
management with uninterrupted 
operations throughout the year.

Marketing and Promotion

During this year we introduced a 
POS online ordering system which 
empowered field sales staff to 
provide a quality and faster service to 
dealers and customers.

A TV campaign was also carried 
out in the first half of the year and 
followed up with a dealer loyalty 
programme to increase the breadth 
of distribution.

We continued with our strategy to 
provide branded sign boards, display 
racks, shop-front refurbishing and 
point-of-sale material to dealers 
where a good sale potential is 
identified. The Company participated 
in several industry exhibitions to 
create better brand awareness 
amongst professional decision 
makers and discerning end-users.

Corporate Social Responsibility

During the current year too, the 
Company undertook several activities 
to support the community specially 
identifying underprivileged areas 
of society. In this context we have 
assisted five rural schools, and two 
community based organizations to 
set up drinking water facilities for 
their students and communities. We 
have also assisted several religious 
institutions to provide water supply 
systems for their devotees.

Future Prospects

Several technological changes are 
taking place in the sphere of water 
supply systems. One significant 
change is the move towards HDPE 
piping systems. The National 
Water Supply and Drainage Board 
has already commenced several 
infrastructure projects utilizing mainly 
HDPE pipes.

The country, especially the Western 
Province is also witnessing an 
unprecedented growth in the 
construction of apartment buidings. 
Such high rise buildings require 
specialised piping systems which 
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withstand higher pressure demands 
as well as systems which are suitable 
for both hot and cold water supply.

Your Company is carefully evaluating 
these trends in the industry and has 
already commenced re-aligning its 
production capability to meet these 
future demands. We have already 
commenced a project to develop 
production capability for HDPE pipes 
which we hope to introduce into the 
market in the forthcoming year.

We have also developed in-
house, the production capability to 
manaufacture pipes suitable for both 
hot and cold water conveyance and 
will be able respond quickly should 
an increased demand arise from the 
industry.

As always the Company's strong 
brand image and product portfolio, 
which has been built around the 
central principle of uncompromised 
quality, its strong financial structure 
and dedicated employees will enable 
the Company to withstand and 
overcome short-term unfavourable 
external business or economic 
turbulence.

Changes to the Board

Mr. Nalin Abeysekere retired from 
the Board of Central Industries PLC 
having served the Company since 
August 2007. I take this opportunity 
to thank him for the wide experience 
he brought with him and shared with 
us.

I also extend a warm welcome to  
Mr. Ariyawansa Hettiarachchy who 
was appointed to the Board with 
effect from 1st July 2017 and look 
forward to working with him in the 
ensuing years.

Chairman’s Review Contd. 
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G S N Peiris
Chairman

Shamil Peiris has served on the Board of the Company 
since its inception. He was appointed Chairman on 26th 
July 2013. He is also the Group Finance Director of 
Central Finance Company PLC, Chairman – CF Insurance 
Brokers (Pvt) Ltd and serves on the Boards of many 
Companies within the Group. He possesses over 38 years 
of post qualification management experience. He is a 
Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Sri Lanka, Credit Institute of Management – Sri Lanka, 
Certified Professional Managers – Sri Lanka. Chartered 
Institute of Management Accountants – UK, British 
Institute of Management – UK, Association of Corporate 
Treasurers – UK and a Chartered Global Management 
Accountant,

Newton Wickramasuriya
Chief Executive Officer

Newton Wickramasuriya was appointed CEO of the 
Company in 1997 and joined the Board of the Company 
in 1999. He holds a BSc Engineering degree from the 
University of Ceylon, Peradeniya and is a Chartered 
Engineer in UK and Sri Lanka. He is a Fellow of the 
Institution of Mechanical Engineers (UK) and a Fellow of 
the Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka. A past President 
of the Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka, and a past 
Chairman of the Ceylon National Chamber of Industries, 
he has served on the Boards of several statutory bodies 
and counts over 45 years of experience in industry here 
and abroad.

Eranjith Harendra Wijenaike
Non-Executive Director

Eranjith Wijenaike has served on the Board of the 
Company as a Non-Executive Director since its inception. 
He is the Managing Director of Central Finance Company 
PLC, a leading non-banking Financial Institution in the 
country and also a Director of several other quoted 
companies within and outside the Central Finance Group. 
He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce and a Post 
Graduate Diploma in Finance and Banking.

Sarath De Costa
Non-Executive Director

Sarath De Costa was the Former Consul General for Sri 
Lanka in Osaka, Japan. He was appointed to the Board 
of Colombo Dockyard PLC in 1993 and is the Chairman 
and Managing Director of the Amano and Tivoli Group 
of Companies, President, Imperial Trading Corporation, 
Japan, a Director of Waters Edge Ltd. and Ceylon 
Shipping Agency (Pte) Ltd. Singapore. He also serves 
as Vice President of the Sri Lanka – Japan Business 
Cooperation Committee, and is a Life Member of the 
Japan Sri Lanka Technical Co-operation and a Member of 
the Sri Lanka Japan Friendship Society.

He was a Representative – Board of Investment of Sri 
Lanka, Patron – Department of Neurosurgery Trust 
(National Hospital), Trustee – National Health Development 
Fund (Ministry of Health), Special Envoy / Advisor - Board 
of Investment of Sri Lanka, Member of the Advisory 
Committee – Ministry of Wild Life Resources Conservation 
and a Director of Industrial Development Board.

Nalin Abeysekere
Independent Non-Executive Director

Nalin Abeysekere was appointed to the Board in August 
2007. He is a President’s Counsel and an Advocate of the 
Supreme Court, a Barrister-at-Law (Lincoln’s Inn) and was 
the former Legal Draftsman.

Ravi Rambukwelle
Non-Executive Director

Ravi Rambukwelle has served on the Board of the 
Company since 2006. He is also the Director - Marketing 
& Operations of Central Finance Company PLC. He has 
over 30 years of management experience, both locally and 
internationally. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics 
and Political Science from the University of Peradeniya, 
a Diploma in Marketing from the Chartered Institute of 
Marketing UK and a Diploma in Commerce from the 
Institute of Commerce UK. He serves as a Director in 
several companies within the Group, as well as outside.

Board of Directors
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Arjuna Gunaratne
Non-Executive Director

Arjuna Gunaratne has served on the Board of the 
Company since 2006. He is also Director – Group Co-
ordination of Central Finance Company PLC and serves 
on the Boards of several Companies within the Group. 
He is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka and of the Chartered Institute of 
Management Accountants of UK.

Ralph De Lanerolle
Independent Non-Executive Director

Ralph De Lanerolle has over 50 years of experience 
both in the public and private sectors, holding senior 
management positions. He has worked primarily in the 
field of Project Finance and Management, undertaking 
assignments in diverse sectors of the economy, especially 
Financial Services, Shipping and Ports, Tourism, Property 
and Transportation.

A Chartered Engineer, he holds a Bachelor’s degree in Civil 
Engineering (First Class Honours) from the University of 
Ceylon (1965) and a Master’s degree from the University 
of Waterloo, Ontario, Canada (1968).He is a Honorary Life 
Member of the Institution of Engineers, Sri Lanka.

Currently, he is the Executive Director of Mireka Capital 
Land (Pvt.) Ltd, and has served, and continues to serve, 
on the Boards of several other private and public listed 
companies.

Indranee Jayasinghe
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mrs.Indranee Jayasinghe is a Fellow Member of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. She holds 
a Masters Degree from the Harvard University, USA and a 
Post Graduate Diploma in State Enterprise and Economic 
Development from ISS, The Hague, Netherlands.

She was the Director General of the Public Enterprises 
Department of the Ministry of Finance and was also the 
CEO of Commercial Fund Management, a subsidiary 
of the Commercial Bank. Later she worked as senior 
tax advisor at KPMG, Chartered Accountants and is 
now a Partner of Jayasinghe & Company, Chartered 
Accountants.

Mrs. Jayasinghe has served on the Board of Directors 
of several Public & Private Sector Corporations and 
Companies.

Ariyawansa Hettiarachchy
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hettiarachchy was appointed to the Board as an 
Independent Non-Executive Director on 1st July 2017. He 
is a Chartered Engineer and a Member of the Institutions 
of Electrical Engineers and Chemical Engineers. He is 
consultant to Sri Lanka Institute of Nanotechnology and 
works as the Chief of Process and Engineering Systems.
He serves on the Board of Lankem Ceylon PLC and as the 
Chairman on the Board of ISL Services Limited. 

He has served on the Board of Hayleys PLC and 
functioned as Managing Director on the Boards of 
Haycarb PLC, Recogen Limited and Puritas Limited. 
He has also served on the Boards of several other 
subsidiaries of Haycarb PLC and Hayleys PLC both 
in Sri Lanka and overseas. He was also a Board 
Member of the Coconut Research Institute, National 
Science Foundation(NSF) and the Sri Lanka Institute 
of Nanotechnology.A Member of the National Nano 
Committee and a member of several advisory Boards of 
the NSF, Mr. Hettiarachchy possesses expertise in the 
fields of Process Design, Installation and Commissioning 
of petrochemical and other process plants, Mechanical 
Engineering, Thermal and Electrical Energy - Generation 
and Storage and Nanotechnology.

Board of Directors Contd.
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The Board of Directors of the 
Company believes good corporate 
governance is the cornerstone 
of strong business performance. 
Corporate governance policies 
and practices of the Company 
have been designed to ensure that 
the Company is focused on its 
responsibilities to its stakeholders 
and on creating long term 
shareholder value. We continuously 
review and find ways to improve our 
Board’s effectiveness in this regard.

The Board is committed to ensure 
that it complies with the specific 
requirements under the rules set 
out in Section 7.10 of the Colombo 
Stock Exchange’s Listing Rules. 
The table on page 8 sets out the 
manner of compliance with these 
rules. The Board also recognizes the 
Code of Best Practice on Corporate 
Governance issued jointly by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Sri Lanka and the Securities and 
Exchange Commission as useful 
guidance in improving corporate 
governance.

Board of Directors

The Board consisted of the Non-
Executive Chairman, Chief Executive 
Officer and seven Non-Executive 
Directors as at 31st March 2017. The 
names and profiles of the directors 
are given on page 5.

Mr. Nalin Abeysekere, Mr. L. R. 
De Lanerolle and Ms. Indranee 
Jayasinghe are Independent Non-
Executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises four non-executive directors, namely:

Mr. A. K. Gunaratne FCA, FCMA (Chairman of the Committee)
Non-Executive Director

Mr. N.J. Abeysekere Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. L.R. de Lanerolle Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe Independent Non-Executive Director

The Internal Auditor functions as the Secretary to the Committee. The Chief 
Executive Officer and the Manager – Finance are invitees to the meetings 
of the Audit Committee. The Committee is empowered to examine any 
matters relating to the financial affairs of the Company and its internal and 
external audits. Its duties include detailed reviews of the financial statements, 
internal control procedures, accounting policies, compliance with accounting 
standards, emerging accounting issues and such other related functions as 
the Board may require. It also recommends the appointment and fees of the 
external auditors. It also keeps under review the independence and objectivity 
of the external auditors. The detailed Audit Committee’s Report including the 
areas reviewed during the financial year 2016/17 is given on page 10 of the 
Annual Report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises five non-executive directors four of 
whom are independent.

Mr. G.S.N. Peiris (Chairman of the Committee) Non-Executive Director

Mr. C.S.W. De Costa Non-Executive Director

Mr. L.R. De Lanerolle Independent Non Executive Director

Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. N.J. Abeysekere Independent Non-Executive Director

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company, who is also a Director of the 
Company, assists the Committee, except when his own remuneration package 
is deliberated. The Report of the Remuneration Committee is given on page 12 
of the Annual Report.

Corporate Governance
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Compliance with Colombo Stock Exchange Rules on Corporate Governance

The table below sets out the relevant Colombo Stock Exchange Rules on Corporate Governance and the manner in 
which the Company complies with them.

Rule No Subject Applicable Requirement Compliance 
Status

Details

7.10.1 Non-Executive 
Directors

At least one third of the total number of 
Directors should be Non-Executive Directors

Compliant Eight of the nine 
Directors are Non-
Executive Directors

7.10.2(a) Independent 
Directors

Two or one third of Non-Executive Directors, 
whichever is higher should be independent.

Compliant Three of the eight Non-
Executive Directors are 
independent

7.10.2(b) Declaration of 
Independence

Each Non-Executive Director should submit 
a declaration of independence / non-
independence in the prescribed format.

Compliant All Non-Executive 
Directors have 
submitted the 
Declaration of 
Independence / Non-
independence

7.10.3(a) Disclosure 
relating to 
Directors

Names of Independent Directors should be 
disclosed in the Annual Report.

Compliant Disclosed on page 15

7.10.3(b) Determination on 
Independence

Determination on criteria not met. Compliant Disclosed on page 15

7.10.3(c) Disclosure 
relating to 
Directors

A brief resume of each Director should be 
included in the Annual Report including the 
area of expertise.

Compliant Disclosed on page 5

7.10.5 Remuneration 
Committee

A listed company shall have a Remuneration 
Committee.

Compliant Disclosed on page 7

7.10.5(a) Composition of 
the Remuneration 
Committee

Shall comprise of Non-Executive Directors a 
majority of whom can be independent

Compliant The Committee 
comprises five Non-
Executive Directors, 
three of whom are 
independent

7.10.5(b) Functions of the 
Remuneration 
Committee

The Remuneration Committee shall 
recommend the remuneration of the Chief 
Executive Officer and Executive Directors.

Compliant The Committee 
recommends the 
remuneration of the 
Chief Executive Officer

7.10.5(c) Disclosure in the 
Annual Report 
relating to the 
Remuneration 
Committee

The Annual Report should set out:
a) Names of Directors comprising the 
Remuneration Committee

Compliant Disclosed on page 7

b) Statement of Remuneration Policy. Compliant Disclosed on page 12

c) Aggregate remuneration paid to Executive 
& Non-Executive Directors

Compliant Disclosed on page 18

7.10.6 Audit Committee The Company shall have an Audit Committee. Compliant Disclosed on page 7

Corporate Governance Contd. 
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Rule No Subject Applicable Requirement Compliance 
Status

Details

7.10.6(a) Composition 
of the Audit 
Committee

Shall comprise of Non-Executive Directors a 
majority of whom shall be independent.

Compliant The committee 
comprises four Non-
Executive Directors, 
three of whom are 
independent.

Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial 
Officer should attend Audit Committee 
meetings.

Compliant The Chief Executive 
Officer and the 
Manager-Finance 
attend Audit Committee 
meetings.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee or 
one member should be a member of a 
professional accounting body.

Compliant The Chairman of the 
committee is a member 
of a professional 
accounting body.

7.10.6(b) Audit Committee 
Functions

Should be as outlined in the listing rules Compliant Disclosed on page 7

7.10.6(c) Disclosure in the 
Annual Report 
relating to the 
Audit Committee

a) Names of Directors comprising the Audit 
Committee.

Compliant Disclosed on page 7

b) The Audit Committee shall make a 
determination of the independence of the 
Auditors and disclose the basis for such 
determination.

Compliant Disclosed on page 10 
and 11

c) The Annual Report shall contain a report of 
the Audit Committee setting out the manner 
of compliance by the Company.

Compliant Disclosed on page 10 
and 11

Compliance with Colombo Stock Exchange Rules on Related Party Transactions

The Related Party Transaction Review comprises the following persons

Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe (Chairperson of the Committee) Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. L.R. De Lanerolle Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. N.J. Abeysekere Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. A.K. Gunaratne Non-Independent, Non-Executive Director

Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya Director / CEO

The Manager - Finance functions as the Secretary to the Committee.

The Report of the Related Party Transaction Review Committee is given on page 13.

The Board of Directors declares that the Company has complied with the requirements of the Colombo Stock Exchange 
Rules on Related Party Transactions.
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Composition of the Audit 
Committee

The Audit Committee is comprised 
of four Non-Executive Directors 
of whom three are Independent 
Directors.

The members of the Board appointed 
Audit Committee are:

A. K. Gunaratne Chairman (NED)

N. J. Abeysekere (IND/NED)

L.R. De 
Lanerolle

(IND/NED)

I. S. Jayasinghe (IND/NED)

(IND-Independent Director, NED-
Non-Executive Director)

Brief Profiles of the members are 
given in the Annual Report under the 
Board of Directors.

The Manager-Internal Audit functions 
as its Secretary.

Meetings of the Committee

The Audit Committee met 4 times 
during the year. The attendance of 
the members at Audit Committee 
Meetings is as follows:

Member 
Meetings

Status No. 
of

A. K. Gunaratne NED 4

N. J. Abeysekere IND/NED 4

L. R. De 
Lanerolle

IND/NED 4

I. S. Jayasinghe IND/NED 4

The Chairman, Chief Executive 
Officer, General Manager and 
Manager-Finance, also attended 
these meetings by invitation. On the 
invitation of the Audit Committee, 
Company’s External Auditor, M/s. 
KPMG (Chartered Accountants) 
attended 2 Committee meetings 

during the year. Proceedings of 
the Audit Committee meetings are 
reported to the Board of Directors.

Role of the Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee assists 
the Board of Directors in fulfilling 
effectively its responsibilities relating 
to financial and other related affairs 
of the Company. The Committee has 
been empowered to:

 • Examine internally any matter 
relating to the financial affairs of the 
Company

 • Monitor and follow-up the Internal 
and External Audit programmes 
and plans, review the Internal Audit 
and External Audit reports

 • Analyse and review risks and 
examine the adequacy, efficiency 
and effectiveness of the Internal 
Control System and procedures 
in place to avoid or mitigate such 
risks.

 • Review Accounting Policies, 
emerging accounting issues and 
disclosures according to Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards (LKAS) 
/ Sri Lanka Financial Reporting 
Standards (SLFRS).

 • Review the compliance of financial 
reporting obligations under 
Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) 
listing rules, rules and regulations 
of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC), Companies Act 
No.7 of 2007.

 • Review and recommend Interim 
and Annual Financial Statements 
prepared for approval of the Board 
and submission to shareholders.

 • Review the policy on the 
engagement of an external auditor 
to provide non-audit services that 
are permitted under the relevant 
statutes, regulations, requirements 
and guidelines.

Financial Reporting

The Committee assists the Board 
of Directors to discharge their 
responsibility for the preparation of 
the quarterly and annual Financial 
Statements that portray a true and 
fair view of the affairs of the Company 
in accordance with the Company's 
accounting records and in conformity 
with the Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards, the Companies Act No.7 
of 2007, rules and regulations of CSE 
and SEC.

The Committee reviewed the 
Company's interim and annual 
financial statements prior to 
submission to the Board and 
recommended their issue to 
shareholders.

The Audit Committee reviewed the 
financial reporting system in place 
to ensure the reliability and integrity 
of information provided. The review 
included the extent of compliance 
with LKAS/SLFRS and applicable 
laws and regulations, review of critical 
accounting policies and practices 
and any changes thereto, alternative 
accounting treatments, major 
judgmental areas and material audit 
judgments.

External Audit

The Audit Committee is empowered 
to recommend the appointment of 
the External Auditor in compliance 
with the relevant statutes, audit fee 
and any resignation or dismissal 
of the auditor. The Committee is 
satisfied that there is no conflict of 
interests between the Company 
and the Auditor, other than for the 
payment of the Auditor's fees. The 
Committee is thus satisfied that there 
is no cause to compromise on the 
independence and objectivity of the 

Audit Committee Report
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Auditor. The Committee reviewed the 
effectiveness of the audit processes 
in accordance with applicable 
standards and best practices. .

The annual financial statements 
2016/17 were reviewed with 
the External Auditor and their 
Engagement and Management 
Letter and Management's responses 
thereto were also reviewed.

The Committee also met with 
the External Auditor at a meeting 
without the presence of CEO 
and other Executive Managers to 
discuss whether there have been 
any improprieties, constraints, 
reservations or any other 
unsatisfactory matters arising from 
the audit which the Auditor wished to 
discuss with the Audit Committee.

The Committee assists the Board of 
Directors in engaging the External 
Auditor for non-audit services in 
compliance with the statutes and 
ensures that engagement in non-
audit services does not impair the 
external auditor’s independence and 
objectivity.

Risks and Internal Controls

The Audit Committee reviewed the 
company operations and monitored 
the effectiveness of internal controls 
and procedures and is of the 
view that adequate controls and 
procedures are in place to provide 
reasonable assurance to the Board 
that the assets of the Company 
are safeguarded and the financial 
position is monitored according to 
information made available.

Internal Audit

During the year, the Audit Committee 
reviewed the adequacy of the scope, 
functions and resources of the 
internal audit division, the results of 
the internal audit process and their 

evaluation of the company's internal 
control system. The Audit Committee 
also reviewed and approved the 
adequacy of coverage of the internal 
audit programme.

Regulatory Compliance

The Audit Committee reviewed 
the information requirement of 
Companies Act No 07 of 2007, and 
other reporting requirements under 
SEC, CSE.

(Sgd.)
A.K. Gunaratne
Chairman - Audit Committee

21 June 2017
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The Remuneration Committee comprises of five Non-Executive Directors of 
the Company of whom four are independent. The Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company, who is also a Director of the Company assists the Committee by 
providing relevant information and participating in its analysis and deliberations, 
except when his own compensation package is reviewed.

The Committee is responsible for determining the compensation of the 
Executive Director, and the fee of Non-Executive Directors. In addition they 
lay down guidelines and parameters for the compensation structure of all 
management staff.

The primary objective of compensation packages is to attract and retain 
a qualified and an experienced work force. These packages are aimed at 
providing compensation appropriate for the industry and commensurate with 
each employee’s level of experience and contribution, bearing in mind the 
Company’s performance and long term shareholder returns.

The Committee reviews the Company’s compensation structures from time to 
time to ensure alignment with strategic priorities and comparison with those 
offered by other similar entities.

(Sgd.)
G.S.N. Peiris
Chairman - Remuneration Committee

21 June 2017

Report of the Remuneration Committee
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The Related Party Transaction Review Committee comprises four Non-Executive 
Directors and the Director / CEO

Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe (Chairperson of the Committee)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. L.R. De Lanerolle Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. N.J. Abeysekere Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. A.K. Gunaratne Non-Executive Director (appointed to 
the committee on 26th May 2016)

Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya Director / CEO (appointed to the 
committee on 26th May 2016)

The Manager - Finance functions as the Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee met once every  calendar quarter and four times during the financial 
year.

The Committee has implemented a process to identify and report proposed 
transactions with related parties. The Committee obtained all required information 
on such transactions, including but not limited to the other unaffiliated sources of 
comparable products or services and the terms offered by such parties, from the 
CEO and senior managers of the Company. Wherever required the Committee also 
obtained advice from competent independent professionals in ascertaining the value 
of assets acquired from or disposed to related parties.

The Committee reviewed all recurrent and non-recurrent transactions and proposed 
transactions with related parties. During the period under review, there were no  
non-recurrent nor recurrent related party transactions that exceeded the threshold 
referred to in the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange. Details of other 
Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company during the above period is 
disclosed in note 31  to the financial statements on page 48 to 50.

The Committee made recommendations to the Board wherever approval of the 
Board was required to proceed with such related party transactions and also set 
guidelines for the senior management to follow on on-going dealings with related 
parties.

(Sgd.)
I.S. Jayasinghe
Chairperson - Related Party Transactions Review Committee

21 June 2017

Report of The Related Party Transaction Review Committee
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The Directors have pleasure in 
presenting to the Members their 
report together with the Audited 
Financial Statements of Central 
Industries PLC and the Group for the 
year ended 31st March 2017.

Review of the Year’s 
Performance

The Chairman's Review describes 
the Company’s progress and 
highlights important events during 
the year.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of the Company 
is the manufacture and distribution 
of PVC Pipes and Fittings. The 
Company also manufactures and 
distributes Electrical Switches, 
Sockets and Accessories, and 
markets other products used in the 
construction industry. The wholly 
owned subsidiary companies Central 
Industries Marketing (Pvt) Ltd. and 
Polymer Technologies (Pvt) Ltd. did 
not carry out any business activity 
during the year.

Parent Enterprise

The Company’s parent and ultimate 
parent enterprise is Central Finance 
Company PLC.

Major Shareholders

The twenty largest shareholders of 
the Company as at 31st March 2017 
are given on page 60 together with 
an analysis of the shareholdings. As 
at that date the Company had 1,344 
shareholders.

Directors’ Responsibility for 
Financial Reporting

The Directors are responsible for 
the preparation of the Financial 
Statements of the Company so that 
it reflects a true and fair view of the 

state of its affairs. The Directors are of the view that these Financial Statements 
have been prepared in conformity with the requirements of the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards, the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and the Listing 
Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Financial Results

The financial statements of the Company and the Group are given on pages 22 
to 58.

Group Company

2016/17 2015/16 2016/17 2015/16

Rs.’000s Rs.’000s Rs.’000s Rs.’000s

Revenue 2,354,154 2,234,159 2,354,154 2,234,159

Profit before tax for the 
year after providing for 
bad debts, depreciation 
of property, plant and 
equipment and all 
known liabilities 201,320 252,881 201,268 277,666

Provision for taxation (62,291) (72,647) (62,207) (72,234)

Profit for the year after 
taxation 139,029 180,234 139,061 205,432

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of a first and final dividend of Rs. 
2.75 per share for the year ended 31st March 2017. This will be paid out of 
the taxable profit of the Company and will be subject to a withholding tax, as 
required by section 56(2) of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007, the Directors 
confirm that the Company satisfies the solvency test in terms of section 57 of 
the Act and that the Company has obtained a certificate from the Auditors to 
this effect.

Taxation

The rate of corporate tax applicable to Central Industries PLC and its 
subsidiaries is 28%.

Property Plant and Equipment
The Group invested Rs.84,170,941/- in property, plant and equipment during 
the year. The movement in property plant and equipment during the year is 
given in Note 13 to the Financial Statements. The movement in intangible 
assets during the year is given in Note 14 to the Financial Statements.

Accounting Policies
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the Company’s Act No.07 of 2007 and Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards applicable for the current accounting period and are 
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the previous year.

Annual Report of the Board of Directors
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Events after the Reporting 
Period
There have been no material post 
balance sheet events which would 
require adjustment to, or disclosure 
other than as stated in note 30 to the 
Financial Statements.

Donations
During the year, donations to 
charities of Rs.206,500/- were made 
by the Company.

Stated Capital
The Stated Capital of the Company 
as at 31st March 2017 was 
Rs.121,320,000/- and is represented 
by 19,768,428 ordinary shares.

Going Concern

The Directors continue to adopt the 
going concern basis in preparing the 
Financial Statements. The Directors, 
after making enquiries and following 
a review of the Company’s budget for 
2017/18, including cash flows and 
borrowing facilities, consider that the 
Company has adequate resources to 
continue in operation.

Board of Directors
The Directors of the Company as at 
31st March 2017 were:

Non - Executive Directors
Mr. G. S. N. Peiris - Chairman
Mr. E. H. Wijenaike
Mr. R. E. Rambukwelle
Mr. A. K. Gunaratne
Mr. C. S. W. De Costa

Executive Director/s
Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya - Chief 
Executive Officer

Independent Non - Executive 
Directors
Mr. N. J. Abeysekere
Mr. L. R. De Lanerolle
Ms. I. S. Jayasinghe

Re-elections to the Board
Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya has 
passed the age limit referred to in 
section 210 of the Companies Act 
No.07 of 2007. His appointment as 
a Director of the Company requires 
the approval of a resolution of the 
Company in general meeting. A 
notice is duly given by the Company 
that in terms of section 211 of the 
Companies Act No.07 of 2007, a 
resolution will be proposed that the 
age limit referred to in section 210 
of the Companies Act No.07 of 
2007, shall not apply to Mr. A.N.P. 
Wickramasuriya who has reached the 
age of 75 years.

Mr. L.R. de Lanerolle has passed the 
age limit referred to in section 210 of 
the Companies Act No.07 of 2007. 
His appointment as a Director of the 
Company requires the approval of a 
resolution of the Company in general 
meeting. A notice is duly given by 
the Company that in terms of section 
211 of the Companies Act No.07 of 
2007, a resolution will be proposed 
that the age limit referred to in section 
210 of the Companies Act No.07 of 
2007, shall not apply to Mr. L.R. de 
Lanerolle who has reached the age of 
74 years.

In terms of Article 85 of the Articles 
of Association, Directors Mr. G.S.N. 
Peiris and Mr. R.E. Rambukwelle 
are due to retire by rotation at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
and being eligible offer themselves for 
re-election.

Mr. A. Hettiarachchy retires in 
terms of Article 91 of the Articles of 
Association and being eligable has 
offered himself for re-election.
 

Auditors
The Financial Statements for the 
year have been audited by KPMG 
Chartered Accountants, who offer 
themselves for re-appointment.

The remuneration of the Auditors 
is disclosed in Note 9 to the 
consolidated financial statements.

In addition the auditors were paid 
Rs.64,709/-for work not directly 
related with the audit of the financial 
statements, and consisted mainly 
of opinion expressed in relation to 
the solvency certificate required in 
the distribution of dividends of the 
Company.

As far as the Directors are aware 
the auditors do not have any other 
relationship with the Company other 
than as disclosed above.

The retiring auditors have expressed 
their willingness to continue in office. 
A resolution to re-appoint them as 
auditors and authorizing the Directors 
to fix their remuneration will be 
proposed at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting.

The Audit Committee reviewed the 
appointment of the auditors, their 
effectiveness and relationship with 
the Group including the level of 
audit and non-audit fees paid to the 
Auditor.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Company has not engaged in any activities contravening laws and regulations. All officers responsible for ensuring 
compliance with the provisions of various laws and regulations confirm their compliance to the Board on a monthly basis.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions
The Directors’ interests in transactions with the Company are disclosed in the Interests Register and in note 31 to the 
Financial Statements. The Company carried out transactions during the year in the ordinary course of its business at 
commercial rates with the following related entities.

Name of the 
Company and 
Relationship

Name of Directors Position Nature of Transactions

Central Finance 
Co. PLC (Parent 
Company)

Mr. E. H. Wijenaike Managing Director Charges for hire of vehicles – Rs.37,932/- 
(2015/16 – 138,255/-)

Interest earned from short term deposits – 
Rs.962/- (2015/16 – Rs.860/-)

Short term deposits as at 31st March 2017– 
Rs.18,431/- (2015/16 – Rs. 17,565/-)

Mr. G. S. N. Peiris Director

Mr. A. K. Gunaratne Director

Mr. R. E. Rambukwelle Director

CF Insurance 
Brokers (Pvt) Ltd.
(Fellow 
Subsidiary)

Mr. G. S. N. Peiris Director The Company has paid total premia of Rs.2.0 
million (2015/16-Rs.2.6 million) to insurers 
during the year. CF Insurance Brokers (Pvt) Ltd 
is entitled to an agency/brokerage commission 
on such premia paid by the Company.

Mr. A. K. Gunaratne Director

Mr. R. E. Rambukwelle Director

Tivoli Plastics 
(Pvt.) Ltd.(An 
Enterprise owned 
by a Director)

Mr. C. S. W. De Costa Director Manufacture of PVC Fittings under agreement 
with the company. The cost of services 
obtained during the year was Rs. 38.5million 
(2015/16-Rs. 38.8 million.)

Amano 
Construction 
(Pvt.) Ltd.(An 
Enterprise owned 
by a Director)

Mr. C. S. W. De Costa Director Contract for Rs.20.5 million (2015/16 - Rs.21.3 
million) to construct a factory building for the 
Company. An advance payment of Rs.8.2 
million had been made as of 31st March 2017.

Purchase of products from the Company - 
Rs.592,751/- (2015/16 - Rs.410,280/-)

Amount due to the Company on products 
purchased  - Rs.56,700/- (2015/16 - Nil)

Annual Report of the Board of Directors Contd.
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Name of the 
Company and 
Relationship

Name of Directors Position Nature of Transactions

Central Industries 
Marketing (Pvt.) 
Ltd.
(A wholly owned 
subsidiary)

Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya Director/CEO Funds advanced by the subsidiary to Central 
Industries PLC, repayable on demand. 

 Amount due to the subsidiary – Rs4.6 
million. (2015/16 – Rs.7.3 million)

 Rs.355,746/- million has been paid as 
interest  on the above funds during the 
year.(2015/16 – Rs.1.5 million) 

Mr. R.E. Rambukwelle Director

Polymer 
Technologies(Pvt) 
Ltd.
(A wholly owned 
subsidiary)

Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya Director/CEO Funds advanced by the subsidiary to Central 
Industries PLC, repayable on demand.

 Amount due to the subsidiary – Rs1.36 
million (2015/16 – Rs.1.48 million)

 Rs.104,391/- has been paid as interest on 
the above funds during the year.(2015/16 – 
Rs.75,667/-)

Mr. G.S.N. Peiris Director

Mr. R.E. Rambukwelle Director

The directors had no direct or indirect interests in any other contract or proposed contract in relation to the business of 
the company.

Interests Register
The Interests Register is maintained by the Company as per the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

Shareholdings of Directors

No.of shares held as at

31st March 2017 1st April 2016

Mr. E.H. Wijenaike 36,012 18,006

Mr. G.S.N. Peiris 6 3

Mr. A.N.P. Wickramasuriya - -

Mr. C.S.W. De Costa - -

Mr. R.E. Rambukwelle 1,014 507

Mr. A.K. Gunaratne - -

Mr. N.J. Abeysekere - -

Mr. L. R. De Lanerolle - -

Ms. I.S. Jayasinghe - -
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The shareholdings of entities in which the Directors have controlling interest:

No.of shares held as at

31st March 2017 1st April 2016

Central Finance Company PLC 8,709,000 4,354,500

CF Insurance Brokers (Pvt.) Ltd. 1,129,200 564,600

CF Growth Fund Ltd. 36,000 18,000

Expanded Plastic Products Ltd. 6,450 3,225

Tivoli Lanka (Pvt) Ltd. 614,400 307,200

During the year ended 31st March 2017;
Mr. E.H.Wijenaike, Mr. G.S.N. Peiris, Mr. R.E. Rambukwelle and Mr. A.K. Gunaratne were Directors of Central Finance 
Company PLC.

Mr. G.S.N. Peiris, Mr. R.E. Rambukwelle and Mr. A.K. Gunaratne were Directors of CF Insurance Brokers (Pvt.) Ltd.  
Mr. E.H.Wijenaike exercised significant control over CF Insurance Brokers (Pvt.) Ltd. through direct / indirect voting power.

Mr. G.S.N. Peiris and Mr. R.E. Rambukwelle were Directors of CF Growth Fund Ltd. Mr. E.H. Wijenaike exercised 
significant control over CF Growth Fund Ltd through direct / indirect voting power.

Mr. G.S.N. Peiris and Mr. R.E. Rambukwelle were Directors of Expanded Plastic Products Ltd.

Mr. C.S.W. De Costa was a Director of Tivoli Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd.

Remuneration of Directors
Remuneration of the Directors is disclosed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The aggregate remuneration received by the Directors during the year under review was:-

2016/17 2015/16

Rs. Rs.

Executive Directors 13,173,651 11,796,211

Non-Executive Directors 414,000 375,000

For and on behalf of the Board,

(Sgd.) (Sgd.)
G.S.N. Peiris A.N.P. Wickramasuriya
Chairman Director/CEO

(Sgd.)
Director
Corporate Services (Pvt.) Ltd.
Secretaries

Colombo
3 July 2017

Annual Report of the Board of Directors Contd.
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The following statement sets out the responsibilities of the Directors of the 
Company in the preparation of the Financial Statements of the Company. 
These differ from the responsibilities of the Auditors which are set out in their 
report appearing on page 21. The Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 requires the 
Directors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year giving a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial 
year and of the Profit or Loss of the Company for that financial year.

In preparing the Financial Statements, appropriate accounting policies have 
been selected and applied consistently, reasonable and prudent judgments and 
estimates have been made and applicable accounting standards have been 
followed.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps sufficient 
accounting records to disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position 
of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements 
have been prepared and presented in accordance with the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards and provide the information required by the Companies 
Act. They are also responsible for taking reasonable measures to safeguard 
the assets of the Company and in that context to have proper regard to the 
establishment of appropriate systems of internal control with a view to prevent 
and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

By Order of the Board

(Sgd.)
Director
Corporate Services (Pvt) Limited
Secretaries - Central Industries PLC

Colombo
21 June 2017

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
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Independent Auditors’ Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 
CENTRAL INDUSTRIES PLC
Report on the Financial 
Statements

We have audited the accompanying 
financial statements of Central 
Industries PLC (the “Company”) and 
the consolidated financial statements 
of the Company and its subsidiaries 
(the “Group”), which comprise 
the statement of financial position 
as at March 31, 2017, and the 
statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes, comprising a summary of 
significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information as set 
out on pages 22 to 58 of the Annual 
Report.

Board’s Responsibility for the 
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors (“Board”) is 
responsible for the preparation of 
these financial statements that give a 
true and fair view in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, 
and for such internal control as 
Board determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Sri 
Lanka Auditing Standards. Those 
standards require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing 
procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on 
the auditors’ judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant 
to the entity’s preparation of the 
financial statements that give a true 
and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by 
Board, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated 
financial statements give a true and 
fair view of the financial position of 

the Group as at March 31, 2017 
and of its financial performance 
and cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 163 (2) of the 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we 
state the following:

a) The basis of opinion, scope and 
limitations of the audit are as 
stated above

b) In our opinion;

 - we have obtained all the 
information and explanations 
that were required for the audit 
and, as far as appears from our 
examination, proper accounting 
records have been kept by the 
Company,

 - The financial statements of the 
Company give a true and fair 
view of its financial position as 
at March 31, 2017, and of its 
financial performance and cash 
flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards, and

 - The financial statements of the 
Company and the Group comply 
with the requirements of sections 
151 and 153 of the Companies 
Act No. 07 of 2007.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Colombo
21 June 2017
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 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees) Note

Revenue 6 2,354,154 2,234,159 2,354,154 2,234,159
Cost of Sales  (1,899,724) (1,718,282) (1,899,724) (1,718,282)
Gross Profit  454,430 515,877 454,430 515,877
Other Income 7 1,803 8,424 1,709 34,373
Selling and Distribution Expenses  (145,372) (161,611) (145,372) (161,611)
Administrative Expenses  (107,466) (102,662) (106,964) (102,244)
Operating Profit  203,395 260,028 203,803 286,395
Finance Income  3,922 746 3,922 746
Finance Costs  (5,997) (7,893) (6,457) (9,475)
Net Finance Cost 8 (2,075) (7,147) (2,535) (8,729)

Profit Before Taxation 9 201,320 252,881 201,268 277,666
Income Tax Expenses 10 (62,291) (72,647) (62,207) (72,234)
Profit for the Year  139,029 180,234 139,061 205,432

Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on Defined Benefit Obligations  (5,739) 3,467 (5,739) 3,467
Deferred Tax on Other Comprehensive Income  1,607 (971) 1,607 (971)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Period  (4,132) 2,496 (4,132) 2,496
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period  134,897 182,730 134,929 207,928

Profit attributable to
Owners of the Company  139,029 180,234 139,061 205,432
Non-Controlling Interests  - - - -

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to
Owners of the Company  134,897 182,730 134,929 207,928
Non-Controlling Interests  - - - -

Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) 11 7.03 9.12 7.03 10.39
Dividend per Share 12 2.75 5.50 2.75 5.50

The annexed Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 27 to 58 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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 Group Company
As at 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
In Thousands of Rupees Note

ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment 13 541,106 495,815 541,106 495,815
Capital Work- In- Progress 13.1 2,575 18,177 2,575 18,177
Intangible Assets 14 289 220 289 220
Investments in Subsidiaries 15 - - 2,000 2,000
Non-Current Assets  543,970 514,212 545,970 516,212

Inventories 16 588,279 472,797 588,279 472,797
Trade & Other Receivables 17 597,065 523,612 597,065 523,612
Investments Held for Trading 18 408 302 136 101
Current Tax Assets 27.1 33 5 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 20,189 27,814 20,109 27,762
Current Assets  1,205,974 1,024,530 1,205,589 1,024,272
Total Assets  1,749,944 1,538,742 1,751,559 1,540,484

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Stated Capital 20 121,320 121,320 121,320 121,320
Revaluation Reserve 21 183,147 183,900 183,147 183,900
General Reserve 22 100,814 100,814 100,814 100,814
Retained Earnings  927,487 846,041 924,466 842,988
Equity Attributable To Owners Of The Company  1,332,768 1,252,075 1,329,747 1,249,022
Non-Controlling Interests  - - - -
Total Equity  1,332,768 1,252,075 1,329,747 1,249,022

LIABILITIES
Employee Benefits 23 61,989 48,222 61,989 48,222
Deferred Tax Liabilities 24 43,402 42,150 43,402 42,150
Non-Current Liabilities  105,391 90,372 105,391 90,372

Trade and Other Payables 25 138,078 143,365 136,733 139,411
Loans and Borrowings 26 146,156 - 146,156 -
Current Tax Liabilities 27.2 21,915 47,012 21,901 47,011
Amounts due to Related Parties 28 5,156 5,435 5,156 5,435
Amounts due to Subsidiaries 29 - - 5,995 8,750
Bank Overdraft 19 480 483 480 483
Current Liabilities  311,785 196,295 316,421 201,090
Total Liabilities  417,176 286,667 421,812 291,462
Total Equity And Liabilities  1,749,944 1,538,742 1,751,559 1,540,484

Net Assets per Ordinary Share  67.42 63.34 67.27 63.18

The annexed Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 27 to 58 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

These Financial Statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007

(Sgd.)
R.H. Moses
Manager-Finance

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.
For and on behalf of the Board,

(Sgd.) (Sgd.)
G.S.N. Peiris A.N.P. Wickramasuriya
Chairman Director/CEO

Colombo.
21 June 2017

Statement of Financial Position
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GROUP     Capital
   Stated Revaluation Redemption General Retained Total
(In Thousands of Rupees)   Capital Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Equity

Balance as at 1 April 2015   121,320 183,389 35,814 65,000 707,587 1,113,110
Comprehensive Income for the year
Profit for the Year   - - - - 180,234 180,234
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Defined  
 Benefit Obligations (Note 23)   - - - - 3,467 3,467
Deferred Tax on Other Comprehensive Income  - - - - (971) (971)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  - - - - 182,730 182,730
Depreciation on Revaluation Surplus   - (1,101) - - 1,101 -
Deferred Tax On Revaluation Surplus   - 1,612 - - (1,612) -
Transfer to General Reserve   - - (35,814) 35,814 - -
Transactions with Owners of the Company
Unclaimed Dividends Forfeited   - - - - 714 714
Final Dividend, 2014/15 - paid   - - - - (44,479) (44,479)
Balance as at 31 March 2016   121,320 183,900 - 100,814 846,041 1,252,075

Balance as at 1 April 2016   121,320 183,900 - 100,814 846,041 1,252,075
Comprehensive Income for the year
Profit for the Year   - - - - 139,029 139,029
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Defined  
 Benefit Obligations (Note 23)   - - - - (5,739) (5,739)
Deferred tax on Other Comprehensive Income  - - - - 1,607 1,607
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  - - - - 134,897 134,897
Depreciation on Revaluation Surplus   - (1,097) - - 1,097 -
Deferred Tax on Revaluation Surplus   - 344 - - (344) -
Transactions with Owners of the Company
Unclaimed Dividends Forfeited   - - - - 159 159
Final Dividend, 2015/16 - paid (Note 12.1 )  - - - - (54,363) (54,363)
Balance as at 31 March 2017   121,320 183,147 - 100,814 927,487 1,332,768

The annexed Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 27 to 58 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions

Statement of Changes in Equity
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COMPANY     Capital
   Stated Revaluation Redemption General Retained Total
(In Thousands of Rupees)   Capital Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Equity

Balance as at 1 April 2015   121,320 183,389 35,814 65,000 679,336 1,084,859
Comprehensive Income for the year
Profit for the Year   - - - - 205,432 205,432
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Defined  
 Benefit Obligations (Note 23)   - - - - 3,467 3,467
Deferred Tax on Other Comprehensive income  - - - - (971) (971)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  - - - - 207,928 207,928
Depreciation on Revaluation Surplus   - (1,101) - - 1,101 -
Deferred Tax on Revaluation Surplus   - 1,612 - - (1,612) -
Transfer to General reserve   - - (35,814) 35,814 - -
Transactions with Owners of the Company
Unclaimed Dividends Forfeited   - - - - 714 714
Final Dividend, 2014/15 - paid   - - - - (44,479) (44,479)
Balance as at 31 March 2016   121,320 183,900 - 100,814 842,988 1,249,022

Balance as at 1 April 2016   121,320 183,900 - 100,814 842,988 1,249,022
Comprehensive Income for the year
Profit for the Year   - - - - 139,061 139,061
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Defined  
 Benefit Obligations (Note 23)   - - - - (5,739) (5,739)
Deferred tax on Other Comprehensive Income  - - - - 1,607 1,607
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  - - - - 134,929 134,929
Depreciation on Revaluation Surplus   - (1,097) - - 1,097 -
Deferred Tax on Revaluation Surplus   - 344 - - (344) -
Transactions with Owners of the Company
Unclaimed Dividends Forfeited   - - - - 159 159
Final Dividend, 2015/16 - paid (Note 12.1 )  - - - - (54,363) (54,363)
Balance as at 31 March 2017   121,320 183,147 - 100,814 924,466 1,329,747

The annexed Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 27 to 58 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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 GROUP COMPANY
For the year ended 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
In Thousands of Rupees Note

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit before taxation  201,320 252,881 201,268 277,666
Adjustments for :
Depreciation of Property,Plant & Equipment 13 38,792 37,974 38,792 37,974
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 14 134 538 134 538
Impairment loss of Property,Plant & Equipment  88 3,157 88 3,157
Fair Value Gain on investments held for trading  (106) (26) (35) (9)
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment  (297) (4,787) (297) (4,787)
Provision for Employee Benefits 23 10,457 8,153 10,457 8,153
(Reversal of) /Provision for Impairment of Trade Debtors 17 (45) 884 (25) 1,076
Written off of Inventories  1,042 1,625 1,042 1,625
(Reversal of)/Provision for Slow moving inventories  3,908 (596) 3,908 (596)
Unclaimed Dividends forfeited  159 714 159 714
Interest Expenses 8 5,997 7,893 6,457 9,475
Interest Received 8 (3,922) (746) (3,922) (746)
Dividend Income  (5) (3) (2) (26,162)

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes  257,522 307,661 258,024 308,078

Increase in Inventories  (120,432) (126,097) (120,432) (126,097)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables  (73,408) 148,621 (73,428) 148,429
Increase/(Decrease) in Amounts due to Related Parties  (279) 2,294 (279) 2,294
Decrease in Amounts due to Subsidiaries  - - (2,756) (22,750)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables  (5,283) 16,526 (2,678) 13,944
Cash generated from Operating activities  58,120 349,005 58,451 323,898

Gratuity Paid 23 (2,429) (2,510) (2,429) (2,510)
Interest Paid 8 (5,997) (7,893) (6,457) (9,475)
Tax Paid  (84,562) (54,322) (84,458) (53,841)
Net Cash (used in)/ generated from Operating Activities  (34,868) 284,280 (34,893) 258,072

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets 13 (61,998) (29,962) (61,998) (29,962)
Capital Work-in-Progress 13.1 (6,773) (18,323) (6,773) (18,323)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  297 4,959 297 4,959
Interest Received 8 3,922 746 3,922 746
Dividend Received  5 3 2 26,162
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities  (64,547) (42,577) (64,550) (16,418)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Short Term Loans obtained  366,598 780,050 366,598 780,050
Repayment of Short Term Loans  (220,442) (948,150) (220,442) (948,150)
Dividends paid  (54,363) (44,479) (54,363) (44,479)
Net Cash generated/ (used in) from Financing Activities  91,793 (212,579) 91,793 (212,579)

Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (7,622) 29,124 (7,650) 29,075
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  27,331 (1,793) 27,279 (1,796)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 19 19,709 27,331 19,629 27,279

The annexed Notes to the Financial Statements from pages 27 to 58 attached hereto form an integral part of these 
Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

Statement of Cash Flows
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1. Reporting Entity
1.1 Domicile and Legal Form

Central Industries PLC (“the 
Company”) is a public limited liability 
company incorporated on 18th 
September 1984 and domiciled in Sri 
Lanka. The registered office of the 
Company and the principal place of 
business is situated at 312, Nawala 
Road, Rajagiriya. The ordinary shares 
of the Company are listed on the 
Colombo Stock Exchange.

The Company has two fully owned 
subsidiaries, Central Industries 
Marketing (Pvt) Limited (Incorporated 
on 22nd October 2001) and 
Polymer Technologies (Pvt) Limited 
(incorporated on 2nd March 1993).

The Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company for 
the year ended 31st March 2017 
comprise the Company and its 
subsidiaries (together referred to 
as the “Group” and individually as 
“Group entities”).

1.2 Principal Activities and 
Nature of Operations

The principal activities of the 
Company are the manufacture and 
distribution of PVC pipes and fittings. 
The Company and the Group also 
manufacture and market other 
products for the construction and 
building industry.

There were no significant changes in 
the nature of the principal activities 
of the Group during the financial year 
under review.

1.3 Parent Enterprise and 
Ultimate Parent Enterprise

The Company’s parent enterprise 
is Central Finance Company PLC. 
In the opinion of the Directors, 
the Company’s ultimate parent 
undertaking and controlling party is 
Central Finance Company PLC.

The financial statements of all 
companies in the Group are prepared 
to a common financial year, which 
ends on 31st March.

1.4 Number of Employees

The numbers of employees of the 
Group and Company as at 31st 
March 2017 are as follows:

Group 332 (2016-325)
Company 332 (2016-325)

2. Basis of Preparation
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements 
of the Group and Company which 
comprise of the Statement of 
Financial Position, Statement of Profit 
and Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in 
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows 
have been prepared in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 
(hereinafter referred to as SLFRS / 
LKASs) as issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka, and in compliance with the 
requirements of the Company’s Act 
No. 07 of 2007.

2.2 Date of Authorization for 
Issue

The consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Group for the 
year ended 31st March 2017 were 
authorized for issue in accordance 
with a resolution of the Board of 
Directors on 21st June 2017.

2.3 Basis of Measurement

The Consolidated Financial 
Statements have been prepared on 
the historical cost basis except for 
the following.

 • Freehold land and buildings which 
have been revalued to fair values.

 • Defined Benefit Obligations are 
actuarially valued and recognized 
at the present value.

 • Investments Held for Trading are 
measured at market value.

No adjustments have been made for 
inflationary factors in the Financial 
Statements.

2.4 Functional and Presentation 
Currency

The consolidated financial statements 
are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, 
which is the Company’s functional 
currency of all Group entities. There 
was no change in the Group’s 
presentation and functional currency 
during the year under review. All 
financial information presented in Sri 
Lankan Rupees has been rounded to 
the nearest thousands, unless stated 
otherwise.

2.5 Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items 
is presented separately. Items of 
dissimilar nature or function are 
presented separately unless they are 
immaterial.

2.6 Comparative Information

Comparative information has been 
reclassified wherever necessary 
to conform to the current year’s 
presentation.

2.7 Use of Estimates and 
Judgments

The preparation of consolidated 
financial statements in conformity 
with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards requires management 
to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies 
and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. 
Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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in the period in which the estimates 
are revised and in any future periods 
affected.

Information about critical judgments 
in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect 
on the amounts recognized in the 
consolidated financial statements are 
included in the following notes;

 • Note 3.7.4 - Impairment of assets
 • Note 3.11 - Employee Benefits
 • Note 3.9.1 - Provisions
 • Note 3.13- Contingencies and 
Commitments

 • Note 4.3.b - Deferred Taxation

2.7.1 Measurement of Fair value

A number of the Group’s accounting 
policies and disclosures require the 
measurement of fair values for both 
financial and non-financial assets and 
liabilities. The Group regularly reviews 
significant unobservable inputs and 
valuation adjustments.

If third party information is used to 
measure fair values, the Group and 
the Company assess the evidence 
obtained from third parties to support 
the conclusion that such valuations 
meet the requirements of SLFRS, 
including the level in the fair value 
hierarchy in which such valuations 
should be classified. Significant 
valuation issues are reported to the 
Group’s Audit Committee. When 
measuring the fair value of an 
asset or a liability, the Group uses 
observable market data as far as 
possible. Fair values are categorized 
into different levels in a fair value 
hierarchy based on the inputs used in 
the valuation techniques as follows:

I. Level 1:
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets or 
liabilities.

II. Level 2:
Inputs other than quoted prices 
included in Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

III. Level 3:
Inputs for the asset or liability that are 
not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the 
fair value of an asset or a liability 
fall into different levels of the fair 
value hierarchy, then the fair value 
measurement is categorized in its 
entirety in the same level of the fair 
value hierarchy as the lowest level 
input that is significant to the entire 
measurement.

The Group recognizes transfers 
between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has 
occurred

3. Significant Accounting 
Polices
3.1 Changes in accounting 
policies

The group has consistently applied 
the accounting policies to all 
periods presented in these Financial 
Statements.

3.2 Basis of Consolidation

3.2.1 Business combinations

The Group accounts for business 
combinations using the acquisition 
method when control is transferred 
to the Group. The consideration 
transferred in the acquisition is 
generally measured at fair value, 
as are the identifiable net assets 
acquired. Any goodwill that arises is 
tested annually for impairment. Any 
gain on a bargain is recognized in 
profit or loss immediately. Transaction 

costs are expensed as incurred, 
except if related to the issue of debt 
or equity securities.

The Consideration transferred 
does not include amounts related 
to the settlement of pre-existing 
relationships. Such amounts are 
generally recognized in the profit or 
loss.

3.2.2 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled 
by the Group. The Group controls 
an entity when it is exposed to, or 
has right to, variable returns from 
its involvement with the entity and 
has the ability to affect those returns 
through its power over the entity. The 
financial statements of subsidiaries 
are included in the consolidated 
financial statements from the date on 
which control commences until the 
date on which control ceases.

The cost of an acquisition is 
measured at the fair value of the 
consideration, including contingent 
consideration. The acquired 
identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities are measured 
at their fair value at the date of 
acquisition. Subsequent to the 
acquisition, the company continues 
to recognize the investment in the 
subsidiary at cost.

Name of subsidiary Controlling 
interest

Central Industries 
Marketing (Pvt) Ltd

100%

Polymer Technologies 
(Pvt) Ltd

100%

3.2.3 Non-Controlling Interest

Non-controlling interests are 
measured at their appropriate share 
of acquired identifiable net assets 
at the date of acquisition Non-
Controlling Interest is not applicable 
to the group as the company owns 
100% of the subsidiaries.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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3.2.4 Loss of Control
When the group losses its control 
over its subsidiaries, it de-recognizes 
the assets and liabilities of the 
subsidiaries, any related Non-
Controlling Interest and other 
components of equity. Any resulting 
gain or loss is recognized in profit or 
loss. Any interest retained in former 
subsidiaries is measured at fair value 
when control is lost.

3.2.5 Intra-Group Transactions
Intra-group balances, intra-group 
transactions and resulting unrealized 
profits are eliminated in full in the 
Financial Statements. Unrealized 
losses resulting from intra-group 
transactions are eliminated unless the 
cost cannot be recovered.

3.3 Foreign Currency 
Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are 
translated to the respective functional 
currencies of Group entities at 
exchange rates at the dates of the 
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated in to the functional 
currency at the exchange rate at the 
reporting date. Foreign exchange 
differences arising on the settlement 
or reporting of the Company’s 
monetary items at rates different from 
those which were initially recorded 
are dealt with in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss.

Non - monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies 
that are measured at fair value are 
translated to the functional currency 
at the exchange rate at the date 
that the fair value was determined. 
Foreign currency differences arising 
on translation are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Non-monetary items that are 
measured in terms of historical cost 
in a foreign currency are translated 

using the exchange rate at the date 
of the transaction. Foreign currency 
differences are recognized in the 
Statement of profit or loss.

3.4 Property, Plant and 
Equipment
3.4.1 Recognition & Measurement
Items of Property, Plant & 
Equipment are measured at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, 
except for land and buildings. Land 
and buildings are stated at revalued 
amounts.

Cost includes expenditure that is 
directly attributable to the acquisition 
of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the 
cost of materials and direct labour, 
any other costs directly attributable 
to bringing the assets to a working 
condition for their intended use.

Purchased software that is integral 
to the functionality of the related 
equipment is capitalized as part of 
that asset.

When parts of an item of Property, 
Plant and Equipment (major 
components) have different useful 
lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items of property, plant and 
equipment.

A revaluation of land and building 
is done when there is a substantial 
difference between the fair value 
and the carrying amount of the land, 
and is undertaken by professionally 
qualified valuers once in every 3-5 
years.

Increases in the carrying amount 
on revaluation are credited to the 
revaluation reserve in shareholders’ 
equity. Decreases that offset previous 
increases of the same individual 
asset are charged against revaluation 
reserve directly in equity. All other 
decreases are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.4.2 Subsequent Costs
The cost of replacing part of an item 
of property, plant & equipment is 
recognized in the carrying amount 
of the item if it is probable that the 
future economic benefits embodied 
within the part will flow to the Group 
and its cost can be measured reliably. 
The carrying amount of the replaced 
part is derecognized. The costs of 
the day-to- day servicing of Property, 
Plant & Equipment are recognized 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss as 
incurred.

3.4.3 Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in profit 
or loss on a straight-line basis over 
the estimated useful lives of each 
part of an item of Property, Plant and 
equipment. Land is not depreciated. 
The estimated useful lives are as 
follows;

Category of Asset Useful 
Economic 

life time 
(Years)

Buildings 40

Plant and Machinery
(Excluding the 
Processing
Unit of the Extrusion 
Lines)

5-25

Tools and Equipment 10

Furniture and Fittings 10

Motor Vehicles 5

Computer Equipment 5

Processing units of 
Extrusion Lines

10,000-
15,000 

operating 
hours.

Depreciation of an asset begins when 
it is available for use, i.e. when it is in 
the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating 
in the manner intended by the 
management.
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Depreciation of an asset ceases at 
the earlier of the date that the asset is 
classified as held for sale (or included 
in a disposal group that is classified 
as held for sale) and the date that the 
asset is derecognized.

The assets’ residual values and 
useful lives are reviewed, and 
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of 
each reporting period.

3.4.4 De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item 
of Property, Plant and Equipment 
is derecognized on disposal or 
when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use. Gains 
and losses on disposal of an item 
of Property, Plant and Equipment 
are determined by comparing the 
proceeds from disposal with the 
carrying amount of Property, Plant 
and Equipment, and are recognized 
net within “Other Income” in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss.

When replacement costs are 
recognized in the carrying amount 
of an item of Property, Plant and 
Equipment, the remaining carrying 
amount of the replaced part is 
derecognized. Major inspection 
costs are capitalized. At each such 
capitalization, the remaining carrying 
amount of the previous cost of 
inspections is derecognized.

3.4.5 Capital Work-in-Progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated 
at cost. These are expenses of a 
capital nature directly incurred in 
the construction of buildings, major 
plant and machinery and system 
development, awaiting capitalization. 
Capital work-in-progress is 
transferred to the relevant asset when 
it is available for use i.e. when it is in 
the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management.

3.5 Intangible Assets

a. Recognition and Measurement
All computer software costs incurred, 
licensed for use by the Group, which 
are not integrally related to associate 
hardware, and can be clearly 
identified, reliably measured and it is 
probable that they will lead to future 
economic benefits are included in 
the statement of financial position 
under the category intangible assets 
and carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses if any.

b. Subsequent Expenditure
Expenditure incurred on intangible 
assets is capitalized only when 
it increases the future economic 
benefits embodied in the specific 
asset to which it relates. All other 
expenditure is expensed as incurred.

c. Amortization
Amortization is calculated to  
write-off the cost Intangible Assets 
less their estimated residual values 
using the straight line method over 
their estimated useful lives and is 
generally recognized in the Statement 
of Profit or Loss. The amortization 
period and the amortization method 
for an intangible asset with a finite 
useful life is reviewed at least at each 
financial year.

d. De-recognition
An intangible asset is de-recognized 
on disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from 
its use and subsequent disposal. 
The gain or loss arising from the 
de-recognition of such intangible 
asset is included in the statement 
of comprehensive income when the 
item is de-recognized.

3.6 Investments

Investments in subsidiaries of the 
Group are classified as non- current 
investments, which are stated in the 

statement of financial position at cost 
less accumulated impairment losses, 
if any.

3.7 Financial Instruments

3.7.1 Non Derivative Financial 
Assets

(i) Initial recognition and 
measurement
Financial Assets are recognized when 
and only when the Group becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of 
the financial instruments. The Group 
determines the classification of its 
financial assets at initial recognition. 
When financial assets are recognized 
they are measured at fair value plus 
directly attributable transaction costs. 
However in the case of financial 
assets classified as fair value through 
profit or loss, the directly attributable 
costs are not considered. Financial 
assets include cash and cash 
equivalents, short term deposits and 
trade and other receivables.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
The Group classifies non derivative 
financial assets into the following 
categories. Namely, financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss, 
held to maturity financial assets, 
loans and receivables and available 
for sale financial assets and the 
subsequent measurement of non-
derivative financial assets depends 
on their classification. Financial 
assets of the Group are limited to 
loans and receivables and fair value 
through profit or loss and their 
subsequent measurement is as 
follows;

The Group has the following non-
derivative financial assets.

(a) Loans and Receivables
Loans and Receivables are financial 
assets with fixed or determinable 
payment that are not quoted in 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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an active market. Such assets are 
recognized at fair value plus any 
directly attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition 
loans and receivables are measured 
at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method, less any impairment 
losses.

Loans and receivables comprise 
of trade receivables and other 
receivables.

(b) Fair Value through Profit or 
Loss
The Company classifies certain 
financial assets as Held for Trading 
at Fair Value through Profit or Loss. 
They are carried at fair value and 
presented as financial assets at Fair 
Value through Profit or Loss. Related 
realized and unrealized gains and 
losses are included in net gains 
(losses) on financial assets at Fair 
Value through Profit or Loss.

Financial assets are classified as 
Held for Trading if they are acquired 
principally for the purpose of selling 
or repurchasing in the near term or 
held as a part of a portfolio that is 
managed together for short-term 
profit or position taking.

Financial assets Held for Trading 
are recorded in the Statement of 
Financial Position at fair value. The 
Changes in fair value are recognized 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 
Dividend income is recorded in ‘Other 
Income’ when the right to receive the 
payment has been established.

(iii) De-recognition
The Group de-recognizes a financial 
asset when the contractual rights to 
the cash flows from the asset expire, 
or it transfers the rights to receive 
the contractual cash flows on the 
financial asset in a transaction in 
which substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset are transferred.

Any interest in transferred financial 
assets that is created or retained 
by the Group is recognized as a 
separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are 
offset and the net amount presented 
in the statement of financial position 
when the Group has a legal right 
to offset the amounts and intends 
either to settle on a net basis or to 
realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented 
on a net basis only when permitted 
under SLFRSs, or for gains and 
losses arising on similar transactions 
such as in the Company’s trading 
activity.

3.7.2 Non-Derivative Financial 
Liabilities

(I) Initial recognition and 
measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope 
of SLFRS are recognized when and 
only when the Group becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions 
of the financial instrument. Financial 
Liabilities are recognized initially at 
fair value plus directly attributable 
transaction costs, however in the 
case of financial liabilities classified 
as fair value through profit or loss 
the directly attributable costs are not 
considered.

(II) Subsequent measurement
The Group classifies non derivative 
financial liabilities into other financial 
liabilities. Such financial liabilities 
are recognized initially at fair 
value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, these financial 
liabilities are measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest 
method. Such financial liabilities 
measured at amortized cost include 
trade and other payables, amounts 
due to related companies loans and 
borrowings and bank overdrafts.

(III) De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognized 
when the obligation under the 
liability is extinguished. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced 
by another from the same lender 
on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated 
as a derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a 
new liability and the difference in 
the respective carrying amounts is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss.

3.7.3 Amortized cost measurement

The amortized cost of a financial 
asset or liability is the amount at 
which the financial asset or liability is 
measured at initial recognition, minus 
principal repayments, plus or minus 
the cumulative amortization using 
the effective interest method of any 
difference between the initial amount 
recognized and the maturity amount, 
minus any reduction for impairment.

3.7.4 Impairment

3.7.4.1 Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each 
reporting date whether there is any 
objective evidence that financial 
assets or group of financial assets is 
impaired. A financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is deemed to be 
impaired if there is objective evidence 
of impairment as a result of one or 
more events that has occurred after 
the initial recognition of the asset and 
that loss event has an impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of the 
financial asset that can be estimated 
reliably.
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Objective evidence that a financial 
asset is impaired includes,

 • Default or delinquency by a debtor.

 • Restructuring of an amount due 
to the company on terms that 
the company would not consider 
otherwise, indications that a debtor 
or issuer will enter bankruptcy.

 • Adverse changes in the payment 
status of borrowers or issuers.

 • Economic conditions that correlate 
with defaults.

 • The disappearance of an active 
market for a security.

Impairment Losses on Financial 
Assets Carried at Amortized Cost
Impairment losses on assets carried 
at amortized cost are measured as 
the difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial asset and 
the present value of estimated 
future cash flows discounted at the 
asset’s original effective interest rate. 
Impairment losses are recognized in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss and 
reflected in an allowance account 
against loans and advances. When a 
subsequent event causes the amount 
of impairment loss to decrease, 
the decrease in impairment loss is 
reversed through the Statement of 
Profit or Loss.

The Group considers evidence of 
impairment for loans and receivable 
on a specific asset basis.

Therefore all loans and receivables 
are assessed individually, and specific 
impairment provisions are made.

3.7.4.2 Non Financial Assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s 
non – financial assets, other than 
inventories and deferred tax assets 
are reviewed at each reporting date 
to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, then the asset’s 
recoverable amount is estimated. An 

impairment loss is recognized if the 
carrying amount of an asset or cash 
generating unit (CGU) exceeds its 
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset 
or CGU is the greater of its value in 
use and its fair value less costs to 
sell. In assessing its value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset or CGU. 
For impairment testing, assets are 
grouped together into the smallest 
group of assets that generates cash 
inflows from continuing use that 
are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Impairment losses are recognized in 
comprehensive income. Impairment 
losses recognized in respect of 
CGUs are allocated first to reduce 
the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the CGU (if any) and 
then to reduce the carrying amounts 
of other assets in the CGU (group 
of CGUs) on a pro -rata basis. For 
other assets, an impairment loss 
is reversed only to the extent that 
the assets carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation or amortization, 
if no impairment loss had been 
recognized.

3.8 Inventories

Inventories have been valued at the 
lower of cost and net realizable value 
under the weighted average method, 
after making due provision for slow 
moving items and obsolescence.

The cost of inventories comprises 
all costs of purchase, costs of 
conversion and other costs incurred 
in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition. The 

costs of raw materials are determined 
at purchase price including all 
expenses incurred in sourcing. The 
cost of Work-in-Progress is the 
value of raw material and direct 
inputs transferred to production. The 
cost of finished goods includes raw 
material cost, direct labor costs and 
a systematic allocation of fixed and 
variable production overheads.

Non-moving and Slow-moving 
Inventories
The management carries out an 
annual review of the inventories and 
makes provisions as follows:

Non-moving Inventories
80% provision is made on the value 
of items which have not moved for 
more than 12 months.

Slow-moving Inventories
50% provision is made on the value 
of slow-moving items which are 
in excess of 12 months average 
requirements.

Machinery Spares
Provision is made in full for machinery 
spares which have been carried in 
stocks for more than 10 years.

3.9 Liabilities and Provisions

Liabilities classified as current 
liabilities in the Statement of Financial 
Position are those, which fall due for 
payment on demand or within one 
year from the date of the Statement 
of Financial Position.

Non-current liabilities are those 
balances that fall due for payment 
after one year from the end of the 
reporting date. All known liabilities 
have been accounted for in preparing 
the financial statement.

3.9.1 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a 
result of a past event, the Company 
has a present legal or constructive 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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obligation that can be estimated 
reliably, and it is probable that an 
outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation.

3.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents are 
defined as cash-in-hand, deposits 
held at call with banks net of bank 
overdraft.

3.11 Employee Benefits

a. Defined Contribution Plans 
-(Employees Provident Fund and 
Employees Trust Fund)
A defined contribution plan is a 
post-employment plan under which 
an entity pays fixed contribution into 
a separate entity and will have no 
legal or constructive obligation to 
pay a further amount. Obligations for 
contributions to defined contribution 
plans are recognized as an expense 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss 
in the period during which related 
services are rendered by employees.

Employees’ Provident Fund
The Company and employees 
contribute 12% and 8% respectively 
on the salary of each employee. The 
fund is being managed by the Central 
Bank of Sri Lanka.

Employees’ Trust Fund
The Company contributes 3% of 
the salary of each employee to the 
Employees’ Trust Fund. Contributions 
to defined contribution plans are 
recognized as an expense in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss as 
incurred.

b. Defined Benefit Plan
A Defined Benefit Plan is a post- 
employment benefit plan other than 
a Defined Contribution Plan. The 
liability recognized in the Statement 
of Financial Position in respect of a 
Defined Benefit Plan is the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation 

at the Statement of Financial Position 
date. The defined benefit obligation 
is calculated annually by independent 
actuaries, using projected unit credit 
method, as recommended by LKAS 
19, “Employee Benefits”.

The present value of the defined 
benefit obligation is determined by 
discounting the estimated future 
cash outflows using interest rates 
that apply to the currency in which 
the benefits will be paid, and that 
have terms to maturity approximating 
to the terms of the related liability. 
The assumptions based on which 
the results of the actuarial valuation 
were determined are included in the 
note 23 to the Financial Statements. 
This liability is not externally funded 
and the item is grouped under non- 
current liabilities in the statement of 
financial position.

However, under the Payment of 
Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983 the 
liability to an employee arises only on 
completion of five years of continued 
service.

The Company recognizes all actuarial 
gains and losses arising from defined 
benefit plans in Other Comprehensive 
Income and expenses related 
to defined benefit plans in staff 
expenses in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income.

Current service costs and interest 
costs related to the defined benefit 
plan in employee benefits are 
expensed in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss.

3.12 Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are stated 
at cost.

3.13 Capital Commitments and 
Contingencies

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed if 
there is a possible future obligation 
as a result of past events but either 
a payment is not probable or the 
amount cannot be reliably estimated.

Capital commitments and contingent 
liabilities of the Group are disclosed 
in note 35 and 36 to the financial 
statements.

3.14 Events after the end of the 
Reporting Period

The materiality of the events after 
the end of the reporting period has 
been considered and appropriate 
adjustments and provisions have 
been made in the Group financial 
statements wherever necessary.

4. Statement of Profit or 
Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income
4.1 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is comprised of the invoiced 
value of goods sold to customers 
after deduction of trade discounts, 
but before charging taxes thereon.

Revenue is recognized to the extent 
that it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the group and 
the revenue and associated costs 
incurred or to be incurred can 
be reliably measured. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, 
net of trade discounts and sales 
taxes and after eliminating sales 
within the group.

The following specific criteria are 
used for the purpose of recognition 
of revenue.
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Revenue from the sale of goods is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss when the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership have been 
transferred to the buyer. Recovery 
of the consideration is probable, 
the associated costs and possible 
return of goods can be estimated 
reliably, and there is no continuing 
management involvement with trade 
returns and trade discounts.

Interest income is recognized on an 
accrual basis.

Dividend income is recognized when 
the shareholders’ right to receive the 
payment is established.

Profit or loss of a revenue nature on 
the disposal of property, plant and 
equipment and other non-current 
assets have been accounted in the 
Statement of profit or loss having 
deducted from the proceeds on 
disposal, the carrying amount of 
the asset and the related selling 
expenses.

4.2 Expenditure

i. Operating Expenditure
All expenditure incurred in running 
of the business and in maintaining 
the property, plant & equipment in a 
state of efficiency has been charged 
to the Statement of Profit or Loss 
in arriving at the profit for the year. 
For the purpose of presentation of 
the Statement of Profit or Loss and 
Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Directors are of the opinion that 
function of expense method present 
fairly the elements of the enterprise’s 
performance, hence such 
presentation method is adopted.

Expenditure incurred for the purpose 
of acquiring, expanding or improving 
assets of a permanent nature by 
means of which to carry on the 
business or for the purpose of 

increasing the earnings capacity of 
the business has been treated as 
capital expenditure.

Repairs and renewals are charged 
to the Statement of Profit or Loss in 
the year in which the expenditure is 
incurred.

ii. Finance Cost
Finance expenses consist of cost 
relating to financing activities. Interest 
expenses are recognized on an 
accrual basis

iii. Borrowing Cost
The Group capitalizes borrowing 
costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualifying asset as 
part of the asset. A qualifying asset 
is an asset which takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for 
its intended use or sale. Other 
borrowing costs are recognized in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss in the 
period in which they occur.

4.3 Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses comprises 
current and deferred tax. Income 
tax expenses are recognized directly 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss 
except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognized directly in equity, in 
which case it is recognized in equity.

a. Current Taxation
Current tax is the expected tax 
payable on the taxable income for 
the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantially enacted at the reporting 
date, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous years.

b. Deferred Taxation
Deferred tax is provided using the 
liability method, providing for the 
tax effect of temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the tax base 

of assets and liabilities, which is the 
amount attributed to those assets 
and liabilities for tax purposes. The 
amount of deferred tax provided 
is based on the expected manner 
of realization or settlement of the 
carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities, using tax rates enacted by 
the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets including those 
related to temporary tax effects 
of income tax losses and credits 
available to be carried forward, are 
recognized only to the extent that it 
is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the 
asset can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date and are reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that the related tax benefit 
will be realized.

4.4 Basic Earnings per Share

The Company and the Group 
presents basic earnings per share 
(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing 
the profit or loss attributable 
to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares in issue 
during the period.

4.5 Dividend Distribution

Dividend distribution to the 
Company’s shareholders is 
recognized as a liability in the period 
in which the dividends are approved 
by the Company’s shareholders.

4.6 Statement of Cash Flow

For the purpose of the statement of 
cash flow, cash and cash equivalents 
consist of cash in hand and deposits 
in banks net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts. Investments with short 
maturities i.e. three months or less 
from the date of acquisition are also 
treated as cash equivalents.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.



35Central Industries PLC | Annual Report   2016/17

The Statement of Cash Flow has 
been prepared using the “indirect 
method”. Interest paid is classified 
as operating cash flows, interest and 
dividend received are classified as 
investing cash flows while dividends 
paid are classified as financing cash 
flows for the purpose of presenting of 
the Statement of Cash Flow.

4.7 Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a 
component of the Group that 
engages in business activities from 
which it may earn revenues and incur 
expenses, including revenues and 
expenses that relate to transactions 
with any of the Group’s other 
components. All operating segments’ 
operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the Group’s CEO to 
make decisions about resources 
to be allocated to the segment and 
assess its performance, and for 
which discrete financial information is 
available.

Segment information reflects Water 
Management Products and Electrical 
Products. Inter segment transfers are 
based on fair market prices.

The Group’s business activities are 
located in Sri Lanka. Consequently, 
assets and liabilities by geographic 
regions are considered not material 
to be segmented. Expenses 
that cannot be directly identified 
to a particular segment are 
allocated on the basis decided 
by the management and applied 
consistently throughout the year.

5. New Accounting Standard 
issued but not effective as at 
the reporting date.
The following SLFRSs have been 
issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri 
Lanka) that have an effective date 
in the future and have not been 

applied in preparing these financial 
statements. Those SLFRSs will have 
and effect on the accounting policies 
currently adopted by the group and 
may have an impact on the future 
Financial Statements.

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard – 
SLFRS 9
Financial Instruments 
Classification and Measurement-
Effective from 1st January 2018

The objective of this SLFRS is to 
establish principles for the financial 
reporting of financial assets and 
financial liabilities that will present 
relevant and useful information to 
users of financial statements for their 
assessment of the amounts, timing 
and uncertainty of an entity’s future 
cash flows.

An entity shall apply this SLFRS to all 
items within the scope of LKAS 39 
Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement.

SLFRS 15 Revenue from contracts 
with customers – effective from 1st 
January 2018.
This SLFRS establishes a 
comprehensive framework for 
determining revenue recognition by 
a five step model and will replace the 
existing LKAS-18 and LKAS-11

The Group is assessing the potential 
impact on its Financial Statements 
resulting from the application of these 
SLFRS.

SLFRS 16 Leases-effective from 
1st January 2019
SLFRS 16 eliminates the current 
dual accounting model for leases 
which distinguishes between on-
balance sheet finance leases and 
off - balance sheet operating leases. 
Instead there will be a single on 
balance sheet accounting model that 
is similar to the current finance lease 
accounting.

The Group is assessing the potential 
impact on its Financial Statements 
resulting from the application of 
SLFRS 16.
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6. Revenue
 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March,  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Gross Revenue  2,400,635 2,278,371 2,400,635 2,278,371
Nation Building Tax  (46,481) (44,212) (46,481) (44,212)
  2,354,154 2,234,159 2,354,154 2,234,159

Segmental Information is given in Note 32 to these Financial Statements.

7. Other Income
 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March,  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Gain on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  297 4,787 297 4,787
Dividend Income  5 3 2 26,162
Sale of Scrap and Obsolete items  1,311 3,380 1,311 3,380
Net Foreign Exchange Gain  39 35 39 35
Bad debts recovered during the year  45 192 25 -
Fair value gain on Investments held for trading  106 27 35 9
  1,803 8,424 1,709 34,373

For the year ended 31st March 2016, Other Income of the Company includes Dividend income of Rs. 26.16 million 
received from the wholly owned subsidiary, Central Industries Marketing (Pvt) Ltd.

8. Net Finance Costs
 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March,  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Interest Income  3,922 746 3,922 746
Finance Income  3,922 746 3,922 746

Interest Expense on Financial Liabilities  4,255 7,176 4,715 8,758
Interest Expense on Distributor Security Deposits  1,546 466 1,546 466
Stamp Duty  196 251 196 251
Finance Cost  5,997 7,893 6,457 9,475

Net Finance Cost  (2,075) (7,147) (2,535) (8,729)

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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9. Profit Before Taxation
The profit before taxation for the year is stated after charging all expenses including the following :

 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Directors’ Emoluments  13,587 12,171 13,587 12,171
Auditors’ Remuneration - Statutory Audit  467 505 367 363
                                     - Non Audit Services  65 107 65 72
Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment  38,792 37,974 38,792 37,974
Amortization of Intangible Assets  134 538 134 538
Donations  207 63 207 63
Bad Debts - (Decrease)/Increase in Specific Provision  (45) 1,076 (25) 1,076
Staff Cost
 Remuneration  119,915 109,302 119,915 109,302
 EPF  15,968 14,572 15,968 14,572
 ETF  3,948 3,642 3,948 3,642
 Employee Retiring Benefits  10,457 8,153 10,457 8,153

10. Income Taxes
 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Amounts recognized in profit or loss
Income Tax on Current Year’s Profits (Note 10.2)  59,432 72,149 59,348 71,736
Withholding tax on dividend received  - 2,615 - 2,615
  59,432 74,764 59,348 74,351
Deferred Tax
Origination of Deferred Tax Assets (Note 24(b))  (2,247) (1,580) (2,247) (1,580)
Origination/(Reversal) of Deferred Tax Liability (Note 24(a))  5,106 (537) 5,106 (537)
Deferred Taxation Charge/(Reversal)  2,859 (2,117) 2,859 (2,117)
Income Tax Expense  62,291 72,647 62,207 72,234

10.1 Income Tax Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31st March 2017 2016
   Value Tax  Value Tax 
   Before (Expenses) Net of Before (Expenses) Net of
(In Thousands of Rupees)   Tax  / Benefit Tax Tax  / Benefit Tax

Group
Acturial Gain/(Loss) on defined benefit obligations  (5,739) 1,607 (4,132) 3,467 (971) 2,496
   (5,739) 1,607 (4,132) 3,467 (971) 2,496

Company
Acturial Gain/(Loss) on defined benefit obligations  (5,739) 1,607 (4,132) 3,467 (971) 2,496
   (5,739) 1,607 (4,132) 3,467 (971) 2,496
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10.2 Reconciliation of Accounting Profits and Taxable Income
 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Profit Before Taxation  201,320 252,881 201,268 277,666
Aggregate disallowed expenses  68,498 91,898 68,497 65,507
Aggregate allowed expenses  (60,672) (76,344) (60,459) (74,626)
  209,146 268,435 209,306 268,547
Other Statutory Income  4,382 2,333 3,922 746
Total Statutory Income  213,528 270,768 213,228 269,293
Qualifying Payments  (1,272) (13,093) (1,272) (13,093)
Taxable Income  212,256 257,675 211,956 256,200

Current Tax on Profits for the Year at 28%  59,432 72,149 59,348 71,736

10.3 Reconciliation of effective tax rate

 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March 2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Profit Before Taxation 201,320  252,881  201,268  277,666
Income tax using the  
domestic tax rate 56,370 28% 70,807 28% 56,355 28% 77,746 28%
Aggregate disallowed expenses 19,179 10% 25,731 10% 19,179 9% 18,342 7%
Aggregate allowed expenses (16,988) -9% (21,376) -8% (16,929) -8% (20,895) -8%
 58,561 29% 75,162 30% 58,605 29% 75,193 27%
Other Statutory Income 1,227 1% 653 0% 1,099 0% 209 0%
Qualifying Payments (356) 0% (3,666) -1% (356) 0% (3,666) -1%
Current Tax on Profit for the Year 59,432 30% 72,149 29% 59,348 29% 71,736 26%
Adjustment for prior years - 0% - 0% - 0% - 0%
 59,432 30% 72,149 29% 59,348 29% 71,736 26%

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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11. Basic Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
parent entity by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The following reflect the profit and share data used in the Basic Earnings Per Share computation:
 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March,  2017 2016 2017 2016

Profit attributable to Ordinary Shareholders (Rs’000)  139,029 180,234 139,061 205,432
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares  19,768,428 19,768,428 19,768,428 19,768,428

Basic Earnings Per Share ( Rs. )  7.03 9.12 7.03 10.39

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at any time during the year. Therefore, diluted Earnings Per 
Share is the same as Basic Earnings Per Share shown above.

The Ordinary Shares of the Company were subdivided at the rate of two shares for every one share previously held on  
28th July 2016 as approved by the shareholders at the EGM held on that date.

12. Dividends per Share
12.1 Dividend Declared and Paid during the Year

The Ordinary Shares of the Company were subdivided at the rate of two shares for every one share previously held on  
28th July 2016 as approved by the shareholders at the EGM held on that date.The final dividend declared for the year 
ended 31 March 2016 of Rs.5.50 per share amounting to Rs.54,363,177/- was paid during the year, on 9,884,214 
shares in issue prior to the sub-division.

12.2 Proposed Dividends for approval at AGM

The Board of Directors has recommended a first and final dividend of Rs.2.75 per share amounting to Rs.54,363,177/- 
for the year ended 31st March 2017, which is to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be 
held on 9th August 2017. As stipulated by Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (LKAS 10) “Events After the Reporting period”, 
the proposed dividend is not recognized as a liability as at 31st March 2017 in the Financial Statements.

Dividend per share is calculated by dividing the dividend declared out of profits for the year attributable to ordinary 
shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Under the Inland Revenue Act No.10 of 2006 withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared out of the taxable profit of 
the Company.

12.3 Compliance with Section 56 and 57 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007

As required by Section 56 of the Companies Act, No.7 of 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company has certified that 
the Company satisfies the Solvency Test in accordance with the Section 57, prior to recommending the first and final 
dividend for the year ended 31st March 2017. A statement of solvency completed and duly signed by the Directors has 
been audited by M/S KPMG, Chartered Accountants.
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13.1 Capital Work-in-Progress

 Group Company
For the year ended 31 st March,  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Balance as at 1 April  18,177 217 18,177 217
Additions during the year  6,773 18,323 6,773 18,323
Transferred to Property, Plant and Equipment  (22,375) (210) (22,375) (210)
Charged to Statement of Profit or Loss  - (153) - (153)
Balance as at 31 March  2,575 18,177 2,575 18,177

13.2 The Company adopts The “Cost Model” to account for Property Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land 
and Buildings. All Freehold Land and Buildings owned by the Company were last revalued by Mr. L.D.S. Rangedera, 
Incorporated Valuer and Valuer of Real Estate as at 31st March 2014. The valuation was made under the “Contractor’s 
Method” on the assumption that the property is free from all restrictions over the title of the land. It is assumed that the 
land and buildings is of freehold ownership. Had the Company not revalued the Freehold land and building, the carrying 
value of the same will be as follows;

 Group Company
As at 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Cost as at 1st April  211,515 189,140 211,515 189,140
Accumulated Depreciation  (47,123) (41,125) (47,123) (41,125)
Carrying value as at 31st March  164,392 148,015 164,392 148,015

13.3 Details of  Land and Building

13.3 a. Freehold land carried at revalued amount

Location Last 
Revaluation 

date

Land  
extent

Carrying value 
as at 31st 

March 2017 
(Rs.’000)

Factory- 195/4, Kerawalapitiya Road, Hendala Wattala 31-Mar-14 3A-1R-2P 130,525

Head Office-312, Nawala Road,Rajagiriya 31-Mar-14 18 Perches 40,000

Land-No 07, Elhena Junction, Warapalana,Udathuththiripitiya 31-Mar-14 8A-3R 36,862

207,387

13.3 b. Freehold buildings carried at revalued amount

Location Last 
Revaluation 

date

No of 
buildings 

Carrying value 
as at 31st 

March 2017 
(Rs.’000)

Factory- 195/4, Kerawalapitiya Road, Hendala Wattala 31-Mar-14 16 61,508

Head Office-312, Nawala Road,Rajagiriya 31-Mar-14 1 41,273

Factory-No 07, Elhena Junction, Warapalana,Udathuththiripitiya 31-Mar-14 2 48,317

151,098
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13.4 During the financial year, the Company acquired Property, Plant and Equipment to the aggregate value of Rs.84.2 
million. Cash payments amounting to Rs.68.8 million were made during the year for purchase of Property, Plant and 
Equipment of which Rs.6.7 million was on account of Capital Work in Progress.

13.5 Facilities available from banks against a Negative Pledge over the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment.

Bank Facilities Available

Hatton National Bank PLC Short Term Loan, Overdraft, Import Loan and Guarantee facilities for Rs.200 million

Public Bank Ltd Import Loan and Guarantee facilities for Rs.50 million

14. Intangible Assets
 Group  Company
For the Year ended 31st March,  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Cost
Balance as at 1 April  3,535 3,504 3,535 3,504
Additions during the year  203 31 203 31
Balance at 31 March  3,738 3,535 3,738 3,535

Accumulated Amortisation   
Balance as at 1 April  3,315 2,777 3,315 2,777
Charge for the year  134 538 134 538
Balance at 31 March  3,449 3,315 3,449 3,315
Carrying Value as at 31st March  289 220 289 220

Intangible assets consists of computer software acquired by the Company/Group.

15. Investments In Subsidiaries
As at 31st March.    2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Central Industries Marketing (Pvt) Limited    1,000 1,000
( 100,000 Ordinary Shares -100% at cost)

Polymer Technologies (Pvt) Limited    1,000 1,000
( 100,000 Ordinary Shares -100% at cost)
    2,000 2,000

The Subsidiaries Central Industries Marketing (Pvt) Limited and Polymer Technologies (Pvt) Limited did not carry out any 
commercial operations during the year. The Board is of the view that there is no requirement for any provision against 
impairment of the investments in the said subsidiaries as at the reporting date based on the assessment of the net asset 
values of the subsidiaries.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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16. Inventories
 Group Company
As at 31st March,  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Raw Materials  299,654 241,734 299,654 241,734
Work-in-Progress  12,667 14,519 12,667 14,519
Finished Goods  238,786 168,854 238,786 168,854
Machinery Spares  24,893 20,416 24,893 20,416
Consumable Stock and By products  2,275 1,573 2,275 1,573
Goods-in-Transit  23,921 35,710 23,921 35,710
Less :- Provision for non-moving and slow moving   
           Inventories (Note 16.2)  (13,917) (10,009) (13,917) (10,009)
  588,279 472,797 588,279 472,797

 Group Company
  2017 2016 2017 2016

16.1 The amount of Inventories carried at net realisable
 value and included above are  7,040 4,314 7,040 4,314

16.2 Provision for Non moving and Slow moving Inventories. 
 Group Company
(In Thousands of Rupees)  2017 2016 2017 2016

Balance as at 1 April  10,009 10,605 10,009 10,605
Increase/(Reduction) in provision during the year  3,908 (596) 3,908 (596)
Balance as at 31 March  13,917 10,009 13,917 10,009

16.3 Facilities Available from banks against a negative pledge over the Company’s Inventories.

Bank Facilities Available

Nations Trust Bank PLC Short Term Loan, Overdraft, Import Loan and Guarantee facilities for Rs.250 Million

Hatton National Bank PLC Short Term Loan, Overdraft, Import Loan and Guarantee facilities for Rs.200 Million

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC Short Term Loan, Overdraft, Import Loan and Guarantee facilities for Rs.132 Million

Sampath Bank PLC Overdraft, Import Loan and Guarantee facilities for Rs.65 million

Public Bank Ltd Import Loan and Guarantee facilities for Rs.50 million

17. Trade and Other Receivables
 Group Company
As at 31st March,  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Trade Receivables  607,670 526,724 602,407 521,441
Impairment of Trade Debtors (Note 17.1)  (36,038) (36,944) (30,775) (31,661)
  571,632 489,780 571,632 489,780
Deposits  3,555 2,897 3,555 2,897
Advances and Prepayments  20,590 30,020 20,590 30,020
Other Receivables  1,288 915 1,288 915
  597,065 523,612 597,065 523,612
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17.1 Impairment of Trade Debtors

Balance as at 1 April  36,944 36,218 31,661 30,743
(Reversal)/Charge for Impairment  (45) 1,076 (25) 1,076
Less.Previous impairment recovered  - (192) - -
Less: Write-off of previously impaired Debtors  (861) (158) (861) (158)
  (906) 726 (886) 918
Balance as at 31 March  36,038 36,944 30,775 31,661

18. Investments Held for Trading
 Group Company
As at 31st March.  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Equity Investments in Quoted Public Companies

Hemas Holdings PLC ( Group-3750 Ordinary Shares/ 
                                    Company 1250 Ordinary Shares)
Market Value at the beginning of the year  302 276 101 92
Appreciation in Market Value during the year  106 26 35 9
Market Value at the end of the year.  408 302 136 101

19. Cash and Cash Equivalents
 Group Company
As at 31st March,  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Cash in Hand  121 121 121 121
Cash at Bank  20,068 27,693 19,988 27,641
Cash and Cash Equivalents in  
 the Statement of Financial Position  20,189 27,814 20,109 27,762

Less:Bank Overdraft  (480) (483) (480) (483)
Cash and Cash Equivalents in  
 the statement of cashflow  19,709 27,331 19,629 27,279

20. Stated Capital
 Group Company
As at 31st March,  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Issued and fully paid
19,768,428 Ordinary Shares  121,320 121,320 121,320 121,320

The Ordinary Shares of the Company were subdivided at the rate of two shares for every one share previously held on 
26th July 2016 as approved by the shareholders at the EGM held on that date.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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21. Revaluation Reserve
 Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March,  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Balance as at 1 April  183,900 183,389 183,900 183,389
Depreciation on Revaluation Surplus  (1,097) (1,101) (1,097) (1,101)
Deferred Tax on Revaluation Surplus  344 1,612 344 1,612
Balance as at 31 March  183,147 183,900 183,147 183,900

22. General Reserve
The General Reserve represents the amount set aside by the Company during the year ended 31st March 2002, for future 
expansion and contingencies.

 Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March,  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Balance as at 1 April  100,814 65,000 100,814 65,000
Transfer from Capital Redemption Reserve during the year - 35,814 - 35,814
As at 31st March  100,814 100,814 100,814 100,814

23. Employee Benefits
 Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March,  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Defined benefit obligations as at 1 April  48,222 46,046 48,222 46,046
Current Service Cost and Interest (Note 23.1)  10,457 8,153 10,457 8,153
Actuarial Loss/(Gain) ( Note 23.2)  5,739 (3,467) 5,739 (3,467)
  64,418 50,732 64,418 50,732
Payments during the year  (2,429) (2,510) (2,429) (2,510)
Defined benefit obligations as at 31 March  61,989 48,222 61,989 48,222

The actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31st March 2017 by Mr. Pushpakumar Gunasekara, an Actuary/Associate of 
Institute of Acturies of Austalia. The following are the principle assumptions used by the valuer for the valuation as at 31st 
March 2017.
    2017 2016

Discount rate    12.5% 12%
Expected future salary increases    9.5% 9.5%

Other assumptions regarding future mortality are based on A49-52 (Ultimate) UK Assured Lives Table.
The gratuity liability is not externally funded.

23.1 Expenses recognized in profit or loss
 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Current Service cost  4,670 3,548 4,670 3,548
Interest Cost  5,787 4,605 5,787 4,605
  10,457 8,153 10,457 8,153
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23.2 Actuarial (Loss)/Gain recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Actuarial (loss)/Gain  (5,739) 3,467 (5,739) 3,467
  (5,739) 3,467 (5,739) 3,467

23.3 Sensitivity of Assumptions Employed in Actuarial Valuation

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions employed with all 
other variables held constant in the employment benefit liability measurement.

The sensitivity on the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial Position 
of the Group and the Company which result from the assumed changes in the discount rate and the salary increment rate 
is as follows.

 Effect on charge to statement Effect on employee benefit 

 of profit or loss and other obligations in the 

 comprehensive Income for the Financial Position 

 year ended 31st March 2017 as at 31st March 2017

(In Thousands of Rupees)  1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease
 
Change in Discount Rate  1,043 (1,043) (1,043) 1,043 
Change in Salary Increment Rate  (1,350) 1,350 1,350 (1,350)

24. Deferred Taxation
 Group Company
As at 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of rupees)

Deferred Tax Liabilities (arising on property, 
plant and equipment - Note 24 (a)  60,758 55,652 60,758 55,652
Deferred Tax Assets (arising from employee retirement  
benefit obligation- Note 24 (b)  (17,356) (13,502) (17,356) (13,502)
  43,402 42,150 43,402 42,150

24. (a) Deferred Tax Liabilities

 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Balance as at the beginning of the year  55,652 56,189 55,652 56,189
Charge/(Reversal) for the year  5,106 (537) 5,106 (537)
Balance as at the end of the year  60,758 55,652 60,758 55,652

24. (b) Deferred Tax Assets

Balance as at the beginning of the year  13,502 12,893 13,502 12,893
Deferred tax on Other Comprehensive Income  1,607 (971) 1,607 (971)
Deferred tax asset recognized during the year  2,247 1,580 2,247 1,580
Origination for the year  3,854 609 3,854 609
Balance as at the end of the year  17,356 13,502 17,356 13,502

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.



47Central Industries PLC | Annual Report   2016/17

25. Trade and Other Payables
 Group Company
As at 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Trade Creditors  14,425 9,290 14,425 9,290
Accrued Expenses  84,663 79,632 84,521 79,482
Distributor Security Deposits  27,173 23,338 27,173 23,338
Other Liabilities  11,817 31,105 10,614 27,301
Balance as at 31 March  138,078 143,365 136,733 139,411

26. Loans and Borrowings
 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Balance as at 1 April  - 168,100 - 168,100
Loans obtained during the Year  366,598 780,050 366,598 780,050
  366,598 948,150 366,598 948,150
Repayments during the Year  (220,442) (948,150) (220,442) (948,150)
Balance as at 31 March  146,156 - 146,156 -

Loans and Borrowings have been obtained for working capital financing from commercial banks and are repayable within 
periods ranging from 2 months to 5 months. All working capital facilities have been obtained under negative pledge on 
the Companys assets.

27. Current Tax Liabilities
 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Balance as at 1 April  47,012 26,582 47,011 26,500
Provision for the year  59,432 72,149 59,348 71,736
Payments made during the year  (84,562) (51,719) (84,458) (51,225)
Balance as at 31 March  21,882 47,012 21,901 47,011

27.1 

Paid in advance at the end of the year  (33) (5) - -

27.2 

Liability at the end of the year  21,915 47,017 21,901 47,011
  21,882 47,012 21,901 47,011
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28. Due to Related Parties 
 Group Company
As at 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Tivoli Plastics (Pvt) Ltd.  5,156 5,435 5,156 5,435
  5,156 5,435 5,156 5,435

29. Due to Subsidiaries
 Group Company
As at 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Central Industries Marketing (Pvt) Ltd.  - - 4,634 7,267
Polymer Technologies (Pvt) Ltd.  - - 1,361 1,483
  - - 5,995 8,750

The above balances represent funds advanced by the subsidiaries to the Company. Interest has been paid to the 
subsidiaries on these funds at average weighted deposit rates (AWDR) that prevailed during the year.

30. Events after the Reporting Period
There have been no material events occurring after the reporting date that require adjustments to or disclosure in the 
Financial Statements, other than those disclosed in Note 12, in respect of proposed dividend for the year.

31. Transactions with Related Parties
31.1 Key Management Personnel

According to LKAS 24-“Related Party Disclosures” Key Management Personnel are those having authority and 
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. Accordingly, the Directors (including 
Executive and Non-Executive Directors) of the Company have been classified as Key Management Personnel of the 
Company and the Group.

As Central Finance Co. PLC (CFC) is the ultimate parent of the Company, the Board of Directors of CFC have the 
authority and responsibility of planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company.Accordingly the Directors 
(including Executive and Non-Executive Directors)of CFC have also been classified as Key Management Personnel of the 
Company and the Group.

i. Loans given to directors

No loans have been given to the directors of the Company.

ii. Key Management Personnel compensation

Compensation paid to/on behalf of Key Management Personnel of the Group and Company are as follows:

 Group Company
For the year ended 31st March  2017 2016 2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Short-term employee benefits  13,587 12,171 13,587 12,171
Post employment benefits - Contributions to EPF & ETF  1,469 1,335 1,469 1,335
  15,056 13,506 15,056 13,506

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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31.2 Transactions with Group Entities

The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of its business with parties who are defined as related 
parties in Sri Lanka Accounting Standard LKAS 24-"Related Party Disclosures" the details of which are reported below. 
The consideration for the goods and services provided has been paid or accrued at prices offered to unrelated customers 
prevailing at that time.

Name of the Company Nature of 
Relationship

Nature of Transactions Transaction Value

(In Thousands of Rupees) 31st March 
2017

31st March 
2016

Central Finance Co. PLC Parent Company Hire charges on vehicles  38 138 

Interest earned from 
savings account  1 1 

CF Insurance Brokers (Pvt) Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary Entitled to Brokerage 
Commission on Premia 
Paid to Insurance 
Companies.

Value of Insurance 
Premia Paid  2,021 2,567 

Nations Trust Bank PLC. An Associate of the Interest received  3,898 697 

Parent Company Interest & Charges Paid  1,956 3,732 

Central Industries Marketing (Pvt) Ltd A wholly owned 
subsidiary

Interest paid on funds 
advanced  356 1,512 

Polymer Technologies (pvt) Ltd A wholly owned 
subsidiary

Interest paid on funds 
advanced  104 76
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31.2.(a) Due to / from Group Entity

Name of the Company Nature of 
Relationship

Nature of Transactions Transaction Value

(In Thousands of Rupees) 31st March 2017 31st March 2016

Central Finance Co. PLC Parent Company Saving account balance as at 
31st March 18 18

Nations Trust Bank PLC. An Associate 
of the Parent 
Company

Banking facilities in the normal 
course of business.

 Limit of Facilities 250,000 175,000

 Utilisation as at 31st March

 Import Loans 23,000 -

 Overdraft - 24

31.3 Transactions with other Related Parties

Name of the Company Nature of 
Relationship

Nature of Transactions Transaction Value

(In Thousands of Rupees) 31st March 
2017

31st March 
2016

Tivoli Plastics (Pvt) Ltd An entity 
controlled by 
Director -  
Mr. C.S.W. De 
Costa

Subcontract Manufacture of 
PVC Pipe Fittings
Value of Processing Charges 
paid

38,474 38,806

Amano Construction (Pvt ) Ltd An entity 
controlled by 
Director -  
Mr. C.S.W. De 
Costa

Contract for Rs.21.3 million to 
construct a factory
building for the Company 
(Entered in to in 2015/16)
Payments made during the 
year 4,198 16,965

Contract for Rs.20.5 million to 
construct a factory building for 
the Company (Entered in to in 
2016/17)
Advance Payments made 8,200 -

Purchase of Products 
manufactured by the 
Company 593 410

Amount due to the Company 
on Purchases 57 -

All transactions negotiated and carried out in the ordinary course of business have been reviewed and approved by the 
Related Party Transactions Review Committee of the Company.
 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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32. Segment Information
For the year ended 31 March    2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Revenue
Water Management Products    2,004,214 1,915,645
Electrical Products    349,940 318,514
    2,354,154 2,234,159

Profit Before Taxation
Water Management Products    156,953 232,755
Electrical Products    44,367 20,126
    201,320 252,881

As at 31st March,    2017 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Segment Assets & Liabilities
Total Assets
Water Management Products    1,507,923 1,355,057
Electrical Products    242,021 183,685
    1,749,944 1,538,742

Total Liabilities
Water Management Products    405,313 270,490
Electrical Products    11,863 16,177
    417,176 286,667

33. Litigations and Claims
There are no litigations and claims against the company or Group as at the end of reporting period.

34. Contingent Liabilities
The Company and the Group had no significant contingent liabilities accruing as at 31st March 2017.

35. Capital Commitments
The Board of Directors had approved to purchase capital assets totaling Rs.69.42 million of which Rs.10.5 million has 
been paid as an advance.The Company had no other capital commitments as at the 31 March 2017.

36. Comparative Figures
Where necessary information has been rearranged to conform to the current year’s presentation and classification.

37. Directors’ Responsibilities
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.
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38. Financial Instruments – Fair Value & Risk Management 
38.1 Accounting Classification & fair value 
Financial Instruments are measured on an ongoing basis either at Fair Value or at Amortized Cost. The summary of 
significant accounting policies describes how the classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and 
expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognized.

The following tables analyze financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair 
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized and a comparison of the carrying amounts and fair 
values of the financial assets and liabilities of the Company and Group which are not measured at fair value in the financial 
statements. The amounts are based on the values recognized in the statement of financial position.

The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities which has a shorter maturity period and based on normal market 
conditions, have been considered as a reasonable approximation to the fair value. Accordingly, the fair value hierarchy 
does not apply to cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, loans and borrowings, trade and other 
payables and amounts due to related parties and subsidiaries.

Group

As at 31st March 2017
(In Thousands of 
Rupees)

Investments 
held for 
Trading

Loans and 
Receivables

Other 
Financial 
Liabilities 

Total 
Carrying 
Amount 

Fair value hierarchy

Fair 
value 

Level 
01

Level 
02

Level 
03

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents

- 20,189 - 20,189 -

Trade and Other 
Receivables

- 597,065 - 597,065 -

Held for Trading 408 - - 408 408 408

Loans and Borrowings - - (146,156) (146,156) -

Trade and Other 
Payables

- - (138,078) (138,078) -

Due to Related Parties - - (5,156) (5,156) -

Overdraft - - (480) (480) -

Total 408 617,254 (289,870) 327,792 408 408

Company

As at 31st March 2017
(In Thousands of 
Rupees)

Investments 
held for 
Trading

Loans and 
Receivables

Other 
Financial 
Liabilities 

Total 
Carrying 
Amount 

Fair value hierarchy

Fair 
value 

Level 
01

Level 
02

Level 
03

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents

- 20,109 - 20,109 -

Trade and Other 
Receivables

- 597,065 - 597,065 -

Held for Trading 136 - - 136 136 136

Loans and Borrowings - - (146,156) (146,156) -

Trade and Other 
Payables

- - (136,733) (136,733) -

Due to Related Parties - - (5,156) (5,156) -

Overdraft - - (480) (480) -

Total 136 617,174 (288,525) 328,785 136 136

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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Group

As at 31st March 2016
(In Thousands of 
Rupees)

Investments 
held for 
Trading

Loans and 
Receivables

Other 
Financial 
Liabilities 

Total 
Carrying 
Amount 

Fair value hierarchy

Fair 
value 

Level 
01

Level 
02

Level 
03

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents

- 27,814 - 27,814 -

Trade and Other 
Receivables

- 523,612 - 523,612 -

Held for Trading 302 - - 302 302 302

Loans and Borrowings - - - - -

Trade and Other 
Payables

- - (143,365) (143,365) -

Due to Related Parties - - (5,435) (5,435) -

Overdraft - - (483) (483) -

Total 302 551,426 (149,283) 402,445 302 302

Company

As at 31st March 2016
(In Thousands of 
Rupees)

Investments 
held for 
Trading

Loans and 
Receivables

Other 
Financial 
Liabilities 

Total 
Carrying 
Amount 

Fair value hierarchy

Fair 
value 

Level 
01

Level 
02

Level 
03

Cash and Cash 
Equivalents

- 27,762 - 27,762 -

Trade and Other 
Receivables

- 523,612 - 523,612 -

Held for Trading 101 - - 101 101 101

Loans and Borrowings - - - - -

Trade and Other 
Payables

- - (139,411) (139,411) -

Due to Related Parties - - (5,435) (5,435) -

Overdraft - - (483) (483) -

Total 101 551,374 (145,329) 406,146 101 101
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38.2 Financial Risk Management - Overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk
- Market risk
- Liquidity risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, 
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of capital.

Risk Management Framework
The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework. The Board of Directors has delegated this function to the Executive Directors who develop 
and monitor the Company’s risk management policies and report regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities. The 
Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems 
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through 
training, management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in 
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee of the Company, oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk 
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to 
the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit 
undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are 
reported to the Audit Committee.

38.2.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations. This risk arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and placements in 
deposits with banking institutions.

38.2.1.1 Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at 
the end of the reporting period was as follows.

As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Trade and Other Receivables 612,513 530,536 607,250 525,523

Cash at Bank 20,068 27,694 19,988 27,641

Total 632,581 558,230 627,238 553,164

38.2.1.2 Management of Credit Risk

a) Trade Receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, 
management also considers the market segment of the Company’s customer base, including the default risk of the 
industry in which customers operate, as these factors may have an influence on credit risk.

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness 
before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Purchase limits are established 
for each customer, which represents the maximum open amount without requiring further approval from the Executive 

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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Directors; these limits are reviewed annually. Customers that fail to meet the Company’s benchmark creditworthiness may 
transact with the Company only on a prepayment basis or on secured basis.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to the credit characteristics of the market segment, 
including whether they are an individual or legal entity, whether they are a corporate customer or a state entity.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade 
and other receivables being a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables at the end of the reporting period by type of 
counterparty was as follows;

As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Retail Dealer Channel Customers 376,166 360,732 376,166 360,732

Corporate Customers 159,815 85,386 159,815 85,386

State Entities 35,652 43,662 35,652 43,662

Other Receivables 25,432 33,832 25,432 33,832

Total 597,065 523,612 597,065 523,612

The Company’s ten most significant customers account for Rs.173.7 million of the trade and other receivables carrying 
amount as at 31 March 2017 (2016: Rs 186.4million).

Impairment of receivables
The aging of trade receivables at the end of the reporting period that were not impaired was as follows;

As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

1 – 60 days 477,106 447,855 477,106 447,855

61 – 182 days 107,529 70,105 107,529 70,105

Above 182 days 12,430 5,652 12,430 5,652

Total 597,065 523,612 597,065 523,612

Allowance for impairment of Rs.36.0 million (2016 – Rs.36.9million) has been made in respect of trade and other 
receivables, as at the year end. Unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 182 days are still considered 
collectible in full, based on historic payment behavior and analysis of customer credit risk.

b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 20 million as at 31 March 2017 (2016: Rs.27.8 million), which 
represents its maximum credit exposure on these assets. Cash and cash equivalents are held with banks and financial 
institutions which are rated AA (lka) to A (lka), based on Fitch Ratings.

38.2.2 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and 
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
.
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38.2.2.1 Exposure to Liquidity Risk

Group
The contractual maturity period of financial liabilities was as follows.

As at 31st March 2017
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Total Carrying 
Amount

2 Months or less 2-6 months More Than 6 
months

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Loans and Borrowings 146,156 - 146,156 -

Trade Payables 14,425 14,425 -

Other Payables 123,653 84,663 38,990 -

Amounts due to related parties 5,156 5,156 - -

Bank Overdraft 480 480 - -

Total 289,870 104,724 185,146 -

As at 31st March 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Total Carrying 
Amount

2 Months or less 2-6 months More Than 6 
months

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Loans and Borrowings - - - -

Trade Payables 9,290 9,290        - -

Other Payables 134,075 110,737 23,338 -

Amounts due to related parties 5,435 5,435 - -

Bank Overdraft 483 483 - -

Total 149,283 125,945 23,338 -

Company

As at 31st March 2017
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Total Carrying 
Amount

2 Months or less 2-6 months More Than 6 
months

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Loans and Borrowings 146,156 - 146,156 -

Trade Payables 14,425 14,425

Other Payables 122,308 84,521 37,787

Amounts due to related parties 5,156 5,156 -

Amounts due to subsidiaries 5,995 5,995

Bank Overdraft 480 480 -

Total 294,520 110,577 183,943

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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As at 31st March 2016
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Total Carrying 
Amount

2 Months or less 2-6 months More Than 6 
months

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Loans and Borrowings - - - -

Trade Payables 9,290 9,290 - -

Other Payables 130,121 106,783 23,338 -

Amounts due to related parties 5,435 5,435 - -

Amounts due to subsidiaries 8,750 8,750

Bank Overdraft 483 483 - -

Total 154,079 130,741 23,338 -

38.2.2.2 Management of Liquidity Risk

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity 
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or 
risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company has access to approved short-term financing facilities from 
commercial banks, if required.

The Company monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with expected cash 
outflows on trade and other payables and it is estimated that the maturity of trade receivables as at the reporting date 
would occur in sufficient quantity and timing, given the historical trends, and currently available information which would 
enable the Company to meet its contractual obligations.

The Company monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with expected cash 
outflows on trade and other payables. As at 31 March 2017, the expected cash flows from trade and other receivables 
maturing within two months were Rs.477 million (2016 – Rs.447 million). This excludes the potential impact of extreme 
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

As at 31st March 2017 the Company had approved overdraft facilities amounting to Rs.52 million of which is  
Rs. 0.48 million was utilized. In addition, the Company has access to approved trade and short-term financing facilities 
of Rs.697 million from commercial banks, of which Rs.174.5 million was utilized on letter of credits/guarantees as at 31st 
March 2017.

38.2.3 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the 
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

38.2.3.1 Management of market Risk 

All borrowing rates are linked to AWPLR and SLIBOR. Hence, any movement will be in line with the market and have a 
corresponding impact.

38.2.4 Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate, due 
to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company, as at the reporting date, does not hold financial instruments 
denominated in currencies other than its functional or reporting currency hence is not exposed to currency risk arising 
from translation of such balances in to the functional or reporting currency, which is Sri Lankan Rupees.
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However, the Company engages in transactions associated with foreign currencies in its ordinary course of operations, 
hence, to that extent is exposed to currency risk. A significant part of the Company’s raw material purchases are imports 
contracted mainly in US Dollar terms and to a lesser extent in Sterling Pounds, Singapore Dollars or Euro. A fluctuation 
in the exchange rates will have an impact over the amount realized in the local currency. Operations concerned with the 
local counterparties do not carry a currency risk exposure, on the basis that those are transacted in Sri Lanka Rupee 
terms.

The Company monitors fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and takes precautionary measures to revise selling prices 
and quotations on a regular basis.

38.2.5 Interest rate risk

The Company’s interest bearing financial assets / liabilities are factored on variable rates of interest hence the Company’s 
exposure to interest rate risk may be considered material.

Profile
At the end of the reporting period the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments were as follows.

As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Group Company

2017 2016 2017 2016

Variable rate instruments

Financial Liabilities

 Borrowings (146,156) - (146,156) -

 Overdraft (480) (483) (480) (483)

Total (146,636) (483) (146,636) (483)

38.2.5.1 Cash flow sensitivity for variable rate instruments

A change of 1% in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would have increased/ (decreased)equity and profit or 
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

As at 31st March
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Group
Profit / (Loss)

Company
Profit / (Loss)

2017 2016 2017 2016

Variable Rate Instruments

1% Increase in interest rate (1,466) (5) (1,466) (5)

1% Decrease in interest rate 1,466 5 1,466 5

Notes to the Financial Statements Contd.
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1. Stock  Exchange Listing
Central Industries PLC is a public Listed Company (Reg. No.PQ 121) the issued ordinary shares of which are listed on the 
Colombo Stock Exchange.

2. Stated  Capital
The Stated Capital of the Company as defined by the companies Act No. 07 of 2007 was Rs.121.3 million as at 31st 
March 2017.

3.  Shareholders as at 31st March 2017

Quantity %

Issued Ordinary Shares        19,768,428

Shares held by the Parent Enterprise, Subsidiaries, Associates, Directors, and 
Shareholders whose holdings exceed 10%

       10,532,082        53.28

Shares held by the public          9,236,346        46.72

Number of Public Shareholders                 1,336

4. Distribution of Shareholdings as at 31st March 2017

Number of Shares 
held

Residents Non- Residents Total

No of 
Share  

holders

No. of 
Shares

% No of 
Share 

holders

No. of 
Shares

% No of 
Share  

holders

No. of 
Shares

%

1-1,000 777 226,600 1.15 7 3,670 0.02 784 230,270 1.17

1,001-5,000 303 741,792 3.75 6 16,724 0.08 309 758,516 3.83

5,001-10,000 90 665,138 3.36 3 24,000 0.12 93 689,138 3.49

10,001-50,000 119 2,467,257 12.48 5 151,835 0.77 124 2,619,092 13.48

50,001-100,000 19 1,421,598 7.19 0 - 0.00 19 1,421,598 7.19

100,001-500,000 10 1,865,298 9.44 1 360,000 1.82 11 2,225,298 11.26

500,001-1,000,000 1 614,400 3.11 0 - - 1 614,400 3.11

Over 1,000,000 3 11,210,116 56.71 0 - - 3 11,210,116 56.71

1,322 19,212,199 97.19 22 556,229 2.81 1,344 19,768,428 100.00

Share Information
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5. Twenty Largest Shareholders as at 31st March 2017

Name No. of Share %

1 Central Finance Company PLC A/C No 03  8,709,000  44.06 

2 Seylan Bank Ltd/ Govindasamy Ramanan  1,371,916  6.94 

3 CF Insurance Brokers (Pvt) Ltd  1,129,200  5.71 

4 Tivoli Lanka Ltd  614,400  3.11 

5 Seylan Bank PLC/Lasantha Chandika Ranaweera Pathirana  494,190  2.50 

6 Mr. H.W.M. Woodward  360,000  1.82 

7 Ayenka Holdings Private Limited  207,000  1.05 

8 Alliance Finance Company PLC  200,000  1.01 

9 Seylan Bank PLC/Dr.Thirugnanasambandar Senthilver  195,425  0.99 

10 Mr. J.D. Bandaranayake  151,000  0.76 

11 Dr. (Mrs.) V. Bandaranayake  130,157  0.66 

12 Bank of Ceylon No.1 Account  128,476  0.65 

13 Mr. M.M. Fuad  124,730  0.63 

14 Mr. T.C.H. Ferdinandis  123,320  0.62 

15 Mr. G.H.S. Kumara  111,000  0.56 

16 Miss. N. Bandaranayake  100,000  0.51 

Mrs. N.D. Palliya Guruge  100,000  0.51 

Timex Garments (Pvt) Ltd  100,000  0.51 

17 Miss I. Bandaranayake  99,632  0.50 

18 Seylan Bank Limited/Ruwan Prasanna Sugathadasa  92,854  0.47 

19 Mr. A.M. Weerasinghe  81,284  0.41 

20 Assetline Leasing Company Ltd/ Mr. E.J.Gunasekera  76,854 0.39

 14,700,438 74

6. Share Trading during the year ended 31st March 2017
Highest  Price- 22nd July 2016           Rs.117.50
Lowest Price-   15th  March 2017           Rs.  41.10
Last  Traded Price-31st March 2017           Rs.  44.00
No. of Trades                  4,761
No. of Shares Traded      4,941,230
Value of the Shares Traded  Rs.373,946,860
Market  Capitalization as at 31st March 2017   Rs.869,810,832

7. Key Financial Ratios

    2016/17  2015/16

Dividend per share(Rs.)        2.75       5.50

Dividend pay out      39.1%     30.2%

Net Assets per share (Rs.) -  Based on the number of shares in issue as 31st March 2017      67.42    63.34 

No of Shares in issue    19,768,428 9,884,214

Share Information Contd.
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Year ended 31st March 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
(In Thousands of Rupees)

Income Statement
Gross Revenue 2,400,635 2,278,371 2,127,305 1,668,498 1,755,906
Profit Before Taxation 201,320 252,881 170,746 94,326 127,057
Income Tax Expenses (62,291) (72,647) (40,415) (18,742) (30,783)
Profit for the Year 139,029 180,234 130,331 75,584 96,274

Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Property ,Plant and Equipment  541,106 495,815 506,822 505,378 486,382
Capital work- In-Progress 2,575 18,177 217 119 818
Intangible Assets 289 220 727 1,308 1,589
Total Current Assets 1,205,974 1,024,530 1,024,231 778,512 672,699
Total Assets 1,749,944 1,538,742 1,531,997 1,285,317 1,161,488

Equity and Liabilities
Share Capital 121,320 121,320 121,320 121,320 121,320
Reserves  1,211,448 1,130,755 991,790 893,096 821,143
Total Equity 1,332,768 1,252,075 1,113,110 1,014,416 942,463

Deferred Taxation 43,402 42,150 43,296 43,047 30,348
Retirement Benefit Obligation 61,989 48,222 46,046 38,307 33,531
Total Current Liabilities 311,785 196,295 329,545 189,547 155,146
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,749,944 1,538,742 1,531,997 1,285,317 1,161,488

Earnings Per Share(Rs.) 7.03 9.12 6.59 3.82 4.87
Net Assets Per Share (Rs) 67.42 63.34 56.31 51.31 47.68

The Ordinay Shares of the Company were sub-divided on 28th July 2016 at the rate of two shares for every one share 
previously held.

The Earnings Per Share and Net Assets per share for the previous years are calculated on the total number of shares in 
issue as at 31st March 2017.         

Five Year Summary



62 Central Industries PLC | Annual Report   2016/17

Name of Company 

Central Industries PLC

Legal Form 

A Public Limited Liability Company
Incorporated in Sri Lanka.

Date of Incorporation 

18th September 1984

Company Registration Number 

PQ 121

Ultimate Parent Company 

Central Finance Co. PLC

Subsidiary Companies 

Central Industries Marketing (Pvt) Ltd. (Reg. No. PV 571)
Polymer Technologies (Pvt) Ltd. (Reg. No. PV 2468)

Directors 
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E. H. Wijenaike
A. N. P. Wickramasuriya - Chief Executive Officer
C. S. W. De Costa
R. E. Rambukwelle
A. K. Gunaratne
N. J. Abeysekere - (retired with effect from 30th June 2017)
L. R. De Lanerolle
Ms. I. S. Jayasinghe
A. Hettiarachchy - (appointed with effect from 1st July 2017)

Chief Executive Officer 

A. N. P. Wickramasuriya
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Bankers 

Hatton National Bank PLC
Nations Trust Bank PLC
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thirty Fifth Annual General Meeting of Central Industries PLC will be held at No. 270, 
Vauxhall Street, Colombo 2, on 9th August 2017 at 4.00 p.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Board together with the Financial Statements of the Company for 
the year ended 31st March 2017 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To approve a first and final dividend of Rs.2.75 per share as authorized by the Directors.

3. To propose the following resolution as an ordinary resolution for the reappointment of Mr. A. N. P. Wickramasuriya who 
has reached the age of 75 years.

 “IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the age limit referred to in section 210 of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007 shall not 
apply to Mr. A. N.P. Wickramasuriya who has reached the age of 75 years prior to this Annual General Meeting and 
that he be reappointed as a director of the Company”.

4. To propose the following resolution as an ordinary resolution for the reappointment of Mr. L.R.de Lanerolle who has 
reached the age of 74 years.

 “IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the age limit referred to in section 210 of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007 shall not 
apply to Mr. L.R.de Lanerolle who has reached the age of 74 years prior to this Annual General Meeting and that he 
be reappointed as a director of the Company”.

5. To re-elect Mr. G.S.N.Peiris a director who retires by rotation in terms of Article 85 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company.

6. To re-elect Mr. R.E. Rambukwelle a director who retires by rotation in terms of Article 85 of the Articles of Association 
of the Company.

7. To re-elect Mr. A. Hettiarachchy who retires in terms of Article 91 of the Articles of Association and being eligable has 
offered himself for re-election.

8. To re-appoint M/s KPMG, Chartered Accountants, as Auditors of the Company to hold office until the conclusion of 
the next Annual General Meeting of the Company at a remuneration to be agreed with by the Board of Directors and 
to audit the Financial Statements of the Company for the accounting period ending 31st March 2018.

9. To authorise the Directors to determine contributions to charities for the ensuing year.

By Order of the Board,

Director
Corporate Services (Private) Limited
Secretaries - Central Industries PLC

Colombo
3 July 2017

Note:
Any member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy instead.
A proxy need not be a member, instruments appointing proxies must be lodged with the Company not less than 48 hours 
before the meeting.

Notice of Meeting
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Form of ProxyForm of Proxy

*I/We ……........................................................................................................................……………………………………...........

of …………………………………………………..............................................................................................................................

being *a member/members of CENTRAL INDUSTRIES PLC do hereby appoint

1. Mr. G. S. N. Peiris or failing him,
2. Mr. E. H. Wijenaike or failing him,
3. Mr. A. N. P. Wickramasuriya or failing him,
4. Mr. C. S. W. De Costa or failing him,
5. Mr. R. E. Rambukwelle or failing him
6. Mr. A. K. Gunaratne or failing him,
7. Mr. L. R. De Lanerolle or failing him,
8. Mrs. I. S. Jayasinghe or failing her,
9. Mr. A. Hettiarachchy or failing him,

………………………………………………......................................................................................................................................

of ……………………………………………………….......................................................................................................................

as *my/our Proxy to vote/speak for me/us on my/our behalf at the Thirty Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be 

held at No.270, Vauxhall Street, Colombo 2 on the 9th day of August 2017 at 4.00 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof, and at 

every poll which may be taken in consequence thereof.

 For Against
1. To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Board together with the 

 Financial Statements of the Company.

2. To approve a first and final dividend of Rs. 2.75 per share as authorized by 

 the Directors.

3. To reappoint as a Director Mr. A. N. P. Wickramasuriya in terms of section 210

 of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

4. To reappoint as a Director Mr. L. R. De Lanerolle in terms of section 210 of 

 the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

5. To re-elect Mr. G.S.N. Peiris in terms of Article 85 of the Articles 

 of Association.

6. To re-elect Mr. R.E. Rambukwelle in terms of Article 85 of the Articles 

 of Association.

7. To re-elect Mr. A. Hettiarachchy a director in terms of Article 91 of the Articles  
of Association.

8. To re-appoint M/s KPMG, Chartered Accountants, as Auditors of the Company to hold office until the 

 conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company at a remuneration to be agreed with

 by the Board of Directors and to audit the Financial Statements of the Company for the accounting period 

 ending 31st March 2018.

9. To authorize the Directors to determine contributions to charities.

Signed this ….................................................… day of …............................................ Two Thousand and Seventeen.

……………....................……………
*Signature/s

*Note:
1. Please delete the inappropriate words

2. Instructions as to completion are noted on the reverse hereof.
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Instructions for Completion of the Form of Proxy
1. Kindly perfect the Form of Proxy after filling in legibly your full name 

and address and by signing in the space provided. Please fill in the 
date of signature.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to 
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/herself.

3. In the case of corporate members, the Form of Proxy must be 
completed under the Common Seal, which should be affixed and 
attested in the manner prescribed by the Articles of Association/
Statutes.

4. If the Form of Proxy is signed by an Attorney, the relevant Power of 
Attorney should also accompany the completed Form of Proxy.

5. The completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at No.216, De 
Saram Place, Colombo 10, Sri Lanka not less than Forty Eight (48) 
hours before the time appointed for the meeting.
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